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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of Material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the loss and
other comprehensive loss , changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
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information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions,
as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors and management are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors and management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors
and management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting Process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
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error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the
backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic
mode has been kept on servers physically located in India on a
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periodicalfincremental basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(j) below of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record
by the Board of Directors, noné of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(j) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

g. In With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B"” of this report.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o
us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of any pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements- Refer Note 41 to the financial statements.

(i)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note no 60 to the Financial Statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall

. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company or

. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on pehalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note no 61 to the Financial Statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall:
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- directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any
material mis-statement.

i No dividend has been declared, authorized, or distributed by the Company in respect
of the current financial year.

j. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, we found that the audit
trail at the database level is editable.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the entire period from April 1, 2023 except that
the audit trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and
at the application level only from October 2023.

k. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company being a private limited company which is a subsidiary of a public company,
is covered under the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013. However, the company has not paid any remuneration to its
directors during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197(16) regarding
compliance with limits of managerial remuneration are not applicable for the current
year.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm's Registration No. 302049E)

Partner

Membership No 077508

UDIN: 25077508BMOVZR9240
Bengaluru

Date; August 01, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Vanya Steels Private Limited of even date)

i.
a) Inrespect of Company’s Property, plant and Equipment (PPE):
A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of PPE; and

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
assets;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular program of
physical verification of its PPE by which all the PPE is verified in a phased manner on
annual basis. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its PPE. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by
us, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (Other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favor of lessee) are
held in the name of company

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by
us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right of
use of Asset) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made there under
,and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Physical verification of the inventory
(excluding material in transit) has been carried out by the management at reasonable
intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management are appropriate. According to the information and explanations given to
us, there were no material discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate of each class
of inventory,

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the company. The discrepancies, if any, between the books of
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accounts and the quarterly return/statements filed with such bank and financial institutions

have been disclosed below :
+
March
2025 8,100.00 7,974.72
December
2024 8,100.00 7,834.39
September
2024 8,100.00 7,856.33
June
2024 8,100.00 7,990.08
Notes ;

i. The differences are on account of st
provisional basis and regrouping of var,

atement filed with the banks

Rs.in Lakhs
11,447.00 11,930.82 (483.82) | Refer Notes
12,812.54 12,868.92 (56.38) I Refer Notes
13,736.36 13,954.28 (21?.92]! Refer Notes
14,751.01 14,735.20 15.81 | Refer Notes

prepared based on
ious ledgers.

ii. While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances available

as on respective quarters
90 days.

and net debtors submitted to bank after excluding more than

iii. The Company has a practice of Submitting net position of debtors, advances to suppliers,

il.
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Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year:

- Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Joint Ventures NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Associates NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Other (loan to employees) NIL NIL NIL 22.83
- Other Companies
NIL NIL NIL NIL
Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above
cases:
- Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Joint Ventures NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Associates NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Other (loan to employees) NIL NIL NIL 12.90
Other Companies
NIL NIL NIL NIL
== J

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans
during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in respect of the loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and interest has been stipulated in the loan agreements. Further,
the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been regular as per the agreements
during the period. The loan given to employees is interest free as per company policy.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans given.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not renewed or extended or fresh loans given
to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same party is not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.
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f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on
demand without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(f)
of the Order is not applicable.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act"). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions
of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

v.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted deposits other than those in the normal course of business, hence the
provision of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under not
applicable to the company; Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products.

We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

vii.
a. The Company does not have liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise

and Value added tax during the year effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST. .

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST'),
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Duty of Customs, Cess
and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date of payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of dispute are as follows :
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(Rs.in Lakhs)

Period to
Amount which Forum where | Amount
Name of the | Nature of the | (Rs.in amount dispute is | Deposited
Statute dues Lakhs) relates pending
The Income-Tax | Income tax FY18-19 Commissioner
Act, 1961 Assessment 24.79 of Income Tax Nil
Centralized
Income tax s Processing
The Income-Tax | Assessment 1.80 FY19:20 Centre
Act, 1961 (Income Tax) Nil
Centralized
Income tax Processing
The Income-Tax | Assessment 2.36 RECC Centre
Act, 1961 (Income Tax) Nil
Goods and
: Deputy
Services  Tax | Appeal FY17-18 s
Act, 2017 844 .45 Commissioner 158
Goods and
i Deputy
Services  Tax | Appeal FY18-19 ey
Act, 2017 33.28 Commissioner 37 98
Goods and
g Deputy
Services  Tax | Appeal FY19-20 5
Act, 2017 90.53 Commissioner 459
Goods and Joint
Services  Tax | Appeal FY23-24 g
Act, 2017 463 Commissioner 462
viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, there are no transactions in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income in the books of account during the year, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender from whom
the loan is borrowed during the year, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were
obtained.
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long term purposes by
the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the
Order is not applicable.

f)  According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on the examination
of financial statements, the Company is not having any subsidiary or Joint venture or
associate companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

X1,

a. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we have neither come across any instance
of material fraud by the company or on the company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor we have been informed any such case by management .

b. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no report under
143(12) of the Act in form ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, has been filed with the Central Government.

c. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no
whistle blower complaints received during the year.

xii. — The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xii.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, all the transaction
with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.
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Xiv.
a. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. The reports of Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

xv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him as
specified in Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013.

XVi.
a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable

b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Hence a Certificate of Registration (CoR) is not required as per Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations provided to us during audit, there are no
Core Investment Company part of the Group. hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

xvii.  Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the company
has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 641.03 Lakhs during the financial year and there
are no cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, further
comments under clause3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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Chartered Accountants

xx.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to u, the Company has during the year spent the amount of Corporate
Social Responsibility as required under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this
report.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm’s Registration No. 302049E)

Partner

Membership No. 077508

UDIN: 25077508BMOVZR9240
Bengaluru.

Date: August 01, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the Members of VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VANYA STEELS PRIVATE
LIMITED (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI')". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and
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Chartered Accountants

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with respect to these financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SINGHI & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 302049E LEMEN

Membership No. 077508

UDIN: 25077508BMOVZR9240
Place: Bangalore

Date: August 01, 2025
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Vanya Steels Private Limited
{CIN: UT4999KAZ005PTCI25578)
A One House No.326, Back Portion, First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout, Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 550092
Balance Sheot as at March 31,2025
Al amount are in ¥ Lakhs, uniess atherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 781707 823459
Capital work-in-progress ] 861237 14702
Right-of-use assats 5 103 251
Other Intangible assats 4 075 558
Financial assets
Imvestments T 14468 4501
Other financial assets 8 7543 20943
Non-current tax assets (net) 9 1119 2531
Other non-current assets 10 21907 79758
Total Non-current Assets 16,881.46 12,967.03
Current assels
Inventaries i1l 10,044 36 527161
Financial assets
Trade recewvables 12 1.24040 471369
Cash and cash equivalents 13 36929 267546
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 54021 un
Loans 15 1280 1155
Other financial assets 16 BO.OT 7105
Current tax assets (net) 17 4742
Other current assets 18 756181 12,588.72
Total Currant Assets 19.916.40 25,366.1%
Total Assats 36,797.86 38,333.22
SRR
Equity and Liabilitien
Equity
Equity share capital 13 158414 1,584.14
Other aquity 20 BAATAD 9.448.71
Total Equity 10,03154 11,032.85
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 21 639325 3,738.81
Leass fiabiities 22 - 124
Pravisions 23 B4.40 44712
Defarred tax liabilities (net) 24 2651 282.19
Other non-current abilities 25 208313 63891
Total Nen Current Liabilities 8,597.29 4,705.27
Current fiabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 26 9,668.17 8950.87
Lease liabilitias 27 124 163
Trade payables 28
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 5953 328
tatal sutstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises and small enterprises.
538743 11,8811
Other financial liabilities 29 72529 7596
Other current habilities 0 2,306.02 126385
Provisions n 135 110
Current tax liabilities (net) iz = 2674831
Total Current Lishilities 18,168.03 22,595.10
Total Liabilities .2.3..?“‘]1 27,300.37
Total Equity and Liabilities 36,797.86 38,333.21

Material Accourting Policies
Notes to tha Financial Statements

Tha accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Audit report of sven date.

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants
|CAI FRMN: 30204

CA Vijay Jain

Partrer
Membership Mo
—‘I
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengakuru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 DIE 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025

Place: Benqa s
Date: 01/08/2025




Vanya Steels Private Limited
(CIN: UT4999KAZ005PTC125578)

A One House No.326, Back Portion, First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout, Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31,2025

Income

Revenue from aperations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-

Employee benefit expense

Finance casts

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Loss before tax

Tax expenses

Current tax

Income tax of earlier years
Deferred tax charge/(benefit)
Total Tax expenses

Loss for the peried

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of equity instruments
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
- Income tax relating to these items

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period

{All amount are in  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32
i3

34
35
36
37
38
39

52

52

52

Earnings/(Loss) per equity share (Absolute Number):

-Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Material Accounting Policies
Notes to the Financial Statements

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 302049E

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025

40

Tta 2
3to 66

Dr 2L Dr .
DIN: 02112630

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025

For the Period ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

44,732.07 60,882.37
389.32 88,61
45,121.39 §0,970.98
43,117.69 52,646.07
(131417 (320.77)
593.39 588.40
1.216.75 990,59
612.79 583.90
2,108.29 4,299.42
46,334.73 58,787.61
(1,213.34) 2,183.37
(1,213.34) 2,183.37
i 492.77

2224 -
(250.30) 70.71
(228.06) 563.48
(985.27) 1,619.89
(21.41) 0.16
5,39 {0.04)
(16.02) 0.12
(1,001.29) 1,620.01
(6.22) 10.37

ICAl M. No.: 509015

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025

TLINY >




Vanya Steels Private Limited
(CIN: UT4999KA2005PTC125578)
A One House No.326, Back Portion, First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout, Sahal

Magar, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092

Statement of cash flows for the period ended March 31,2025
(ANl amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjust ts to ile profit before tax to cash generated

from operating activities

Provision for employee benefits

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Impairment of trade receivables

Interest income

Finance costs

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain

Advance From Customers Write Back

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Other non-financial assets

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for PPE, intangible assets and CWIP

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{Increase)/decrease in investments

Interest income

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments for borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings

Proceeds from Equity Share Capital

Payments for Preference Shares

Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of Dividends

Finance costs

Net cash inflow from/(used in) financing activities (C)

MNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

For the Period ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(1,213.34) 2,183.37
19.09 20.10
612.79 583.90
1.27 (37.68)
(302.68) (B0.98)
1.216.75 990.59
(7.19)
(60.00)
266.69 3,659.30
4,772.74) 3327101
3.479.21 193.70
12647 146.21
5,007.78 (7,772.82)
(6,566,96) 8,792.43
11.70 (65.90)
769.69 726.47
(1,678.16) 9,006.40
323.37) (307.35)
(2.001.52) 8,699.04
(3,918.83) (4,288.80)
(508.10) (1.51)
(99.67) =
399 13.57
(4,522.61) (4,276.74)
(3,896.64) (9,167.69)
9,138.52 2,500.65
- 2,500.00
(58.30)
(1.80) (1.80)
(0.09)
(943.72) 1931.78)
4,237.97 (5,100.62)
(2,286.17) (678.31)
2,675.46 335377
389.29 2,675.46

— )




Vanya Steels Private Limited
(CIN: UT4999KA2005PTC125578)
A One House No.326, Back Portion, First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout, Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru, K taka, India, 560092
Statement of cash flows for the period ended March 31,2025
(Al amount are in & Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to Statement of cash flows:

(i} Components of cash and bank balances (refer note 13 and 14) As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 389,29 2,675.46
Other bank balances 540.21 321
Cash and bank balances at end of the period 929.49 2,707.57

(i) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Non-current borrowings Current borrowings

For the period ended March 31, 2025

Balance as at April 1, 2024 3,738.81 8,950.81
Net Cash Flows during the period 4,396.19 737.36
Adjustment for processing fee (10.29) -
Other non-cash changes 35.26 -
Reclassifiaction of deferred portion borrowings to other current liabilites {1,766.72)

Balance as at March 31, 2025 6,393.25 9,688.17

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Balance as at April 1, 2023 3,08894 16,219.32
Net Cash Flows during the year 691.14 (7,268.51)
Adjustment for processing fee 7.12 -
Other non-cash changes (48.39) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,738.81 8,950.81

There are na non-cash changes on account of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates and fair values,

(iii) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow Statements" specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(iv) The accompanying notes 3 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Material Accounting Policies 1te 2
Motes to the Financial Statements 3to 66

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 302049E

Part : = Director —
Merjbership No: 077508 DIN: 02]50846 DIN: 02112630 ICAI M. No: 509015

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025




Vanya Steels Private Limited
(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)
A One House No.326, Back Portion, First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout, Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru, K; taka, India, 560092
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31,2025
(Al amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.516.02
Change in equity share capital during 2023-24 68.12
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.584.14
Change in equity share capital during the periad -

Balance as at March 31,2025 _‘iéSM.M

B. Other equity

Particulars R.“f“d Securiliu R E“":.l Rt"_':“??mm: 3 Revaluation Surpl Total
b Preimem Resarve obligation

Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,071.26 2,082.84 - 15.68 227.10 5,396.88
Loss for the period 1,619.89 2,431.88 - - - 4,051.77
Dividend 10.07) - = = = (0.07)
Other comprehensive income - - 0.16 = 0.16
Tax impact on above - - - (0.04) - (0.04)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4,691.08 4.514.72 - 15.80 22710 9,448.70
Loss for the period 985.27) - - - (985.27)
Dividend = - - - -
Other comprehensive income/(lass) 121.41) - - - (21.47)
Tax impact on above 539 - - - 5.39
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve (55.00) - 55.00 - =
Balance as at March 31,2025 3,634.79 4,514.72 " 55.00 15.80 227.10 8,447.42
Material Accounting Policies Tto 2

MNotes to the Financial Statements ito 66

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants

LITIWL Y

%
ICALFRM: 302049E L=
iy ]
o Diractor X _ o
\C DIN: 02150846 y
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bangaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Data: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025
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Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i)

(ii)

Company Overview

. Vanya Steels Private Limited (the Company) is a private limited company domiciled in India, with its registered

office situated at A One House No. 326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bangalore - 560092. The Company was incorporated on June 20, 2005. The Company is engaged in the business
of manufacturing and trading of Sponge Iron.

. Material Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The material accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are
listed below. These policies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented in these
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

These financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on August 1, 2025,

(A) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(B) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the
Company’s normal operating cycle, which is based on the nature of business and the time elapsed between
deployment of resources and the realisation of cash and cash equivalents. The company has considered an
operating cycle of 12 months.

(C) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also the Company'’s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

(D) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:



Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Items Basis of measurement
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit asset/liability Present value of defined benefit obligation less Fair

value of Plan asset
(E) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

* Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

¢ Business model assessment ~ The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and
accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made.

e Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

e Classification of leases ~ Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period
of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.
In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the
Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contract.

e Expected credit loss (ECL) — The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g, likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes
significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss:

®  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk



Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iii)

= Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL
= Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities — At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management judgment,
changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding
contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets -~ Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual
values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Retirement benefit obligations - The Company's retirement benefit obligations are subject to a number of
assumptions including discount rates, inflation, salary growth and mortality rate. Significant assumptions are
required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact on the
amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these
assumptions based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice. The assumptions are reviewed
annually and adjusted following actuarial and experience changes.

Revenue

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning revenue earned from
contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, using
a five-step model.

Revenue from sale of goodys

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that
reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any
taxes/duties and discounts.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:



Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iv)

a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or

b. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

c. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export sales
is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises provision
for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale.

Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract
inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each
reporting period.

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers.
Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between
the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

Contract balances:

Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

A trade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration becomes
unconditional. Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is
conditional other than the passage of time.

Contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities are Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has
already received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company satisfies its
performance obligation under the contract.

Other operating income

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and
conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied.

Other income
Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.
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(v)

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Commission income

Commission income are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss only when the relevant services have been
rendered.

Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the
related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits:
Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a
predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The
Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for
contribution to defined contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit
and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount
equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for
on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past
service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be
settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change
in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The
Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
‘value of any plan assets.
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(vi)

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The liability
in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date, Actuarial gain and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange transactions and translations
Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency amount
of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are measured
in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company’s monetary

_ items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous

financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets) are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

(vii) Tax expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
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best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaction;
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(viii) Inventories

Inventories comprise the followings:

a) Raw materials,

b) Work-in-progress,

c) Finished and semi-finished goods
d) Stock-in-trade, and

e) Stores and spares.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, The comparison of cost and net realisable value is
made on an item by item basis. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost s determined using first in, first out
method of inventory valuation.

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management'’s estimate based on demand
and market of the inventories.
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(ix) Cash and cash equivalents

(x)

(xi)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets
Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial statements, where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)
R £ l :

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost (or) deemed cost applied on transition to
Ind AS less depreciation and impairment. Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which includes capitalised
borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
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Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Advance given towards acquisition (or) construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under “Other Non-current assets”.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value
over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule |l of the Act.

The useful lives of the assets are as under:

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Land Not depreciable asset
Factory sheds and building 30 & 60 years
Plant and equipment 15 & 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipments 3 & 5 years
Vehicles 8 & 10 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives
as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on
addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for
intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date
of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.
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Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

(xii) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent expenditure on an
intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when incurred unless it is probable
that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably,
in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

Intangible assets under development

Expenditure on research and development eligible for capitalisation are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use. An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Computer Software are being amortised on a Straight Line Method based on the method as prescribed under
Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013.

Intangible assets Useful lives (in years)
Software 3 Years

(xiii) Leases
As lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain
lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
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any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

(xiv) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis,

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

(xv) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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(xvi) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

i il
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
e Amortised cost,
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
o  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
* the assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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In order to meet the requirements of the Electricity Act 2003 and the Electricity Rules 2005 regarding
consumption of Electricity in captive generating plants, the Company enters into exchange barter transactions
by either selling or purchasing equity shares between group companies. The Company has opted to recognize
and classify such financial assets as Financial Assets through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) in the
financial statements. Considering the fact that these are intra-group transactions entered into only to meet
regulatory requirements, the Company measures these assets at cost which is considered to be the fair value.

Financial . Busi el

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

* the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

* the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

* terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment

and extension features; and
e terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
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which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits
or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination)
is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Eiaan;ialﬁ&;ﬂs:juhsequﬂmmand_gainund_bssei

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecogpnition is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC| are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gains and Losses on the Interest-free Loans from Promoters: Interest expense on loans availed from the
promoters of the Company is charged at effective interest rate method and charged to Finance cost. The deferred
income recognized at the time of initial recognition is recognized as income over the loan term on straight-line
basis.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition
Ei ial

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Fi ial liabiliti

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-
Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

 abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

* the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider

otherwise; E
* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
¢ the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

* the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
 the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e,, the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.



Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(xvii) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as
at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date.

(xviii) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment
including inter-segment revenue.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallocable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallocable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a
whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker' or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 49 for segment information.

(xix) Material Accounting Policy Information

The Company adopted Disclosure of accounting policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023. Although
the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the
accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.



Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The amendments require the disclosure of “material” rather than “significant” accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,

assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand
other information in the financial statements.

..... space intentionally left blank....



3 Proparty, plant and equipment

Currant peried Gross block (at cost) Accumulated depreciation Nt block
Asat Additiens Dispesal/ As at ) Additions Dispasal/ Asat As at
April 1, 2024 I'Illfiﬂ the period Adjustment March 31,2025 April 1, 2024 dm the peried Adjustment March 31,2025 March 31,2025
Freehald land 1,740,220 - - 1,740,20 - = = 1.740.20
Factory shads and building 24987 2284 - arem 8658 4g.01 - 13459 BRI
Plant and squipment 635250 15118 - 710366 140672 53693 - 1,943 65 5,160.01
Efectrical installation - 163 - 183 - on - a1l 150
Furnitura and fixtures 175 178 553 122 0.54 - 1.76 m
Office equipmants ia07 227 - 3634 1712 477 - 2188 Taas
Computar 1825 193 = 2018 B70 508 = 1378 640
Vehicles BEA1 147 = 93.88 302 11.20 = 41,32 5256
9,785.05 183.08 - 9,97473 1,550.46 60668 = 215712 7.217.01
Bravicus ymac Gross block (at cot) Accumulsted dey i Net block
Asat Additions Disposal/ As st Asat Additions Disposal/ As at As al
April 1, 2023 during the year Adjust March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 during the year Ad]s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Freshold land T,707.47 127 1.740.20 - - - = 1.140.20
Factory sheds and building B4g10 1037 - 949,87 55.43 nas - 86,58 85329
Plant and aquipment 641572 53678 - 6,952.50 88018 526,54 - 140672 554578
Furniture and fistures 104 an & s 084 03s - L2 253
Office aquipments 2486 821 - o7 1234 478 - 1712 1635
Computer 1334 491 = 1825 a7 4831 - 870 955
Vahicles 7754 B.BY = asa1 20,19 293 = 0.2 5629
9,090.07 654.52 - 9,785,058 §72.85 57761 - 1.550.46 8,234.5%
HNaotes:
(i} The Company has not carried out any revaluation of property, plant and equipment for the period ended March 31,2025,
(i} Please refer note 41 for capital commitments,
(i) There are na impairment losses recognised for the period ended March 31,2025,
(v} There are ne exchange differences adjusted in Property, plant and squipment,
(¥} All property, plant and equipment, are subject 1o charga against secured barrawings of the company referred in notes a5 secured term loans and vahicle loans fiom banks. frafar note 46).
4 Other Intangible assets
Current pariod Gross block (st cost] Accumulsted amortisation Net block
As at Additions Disposal/ Asat As at Additions Dispasal/ As at Asat
April 1, 2024 during the year Adj March 31,2025 April 1, 2024 during the year Adj March 31,2025 March 11,2025
Computer Software 1521 = 1521 5.63 483 1446 0.7%
1521 - 1521 363 483 = 14.45 0.78
Provious Year Gross block (st cost) Aceumulated i Mot block
Asat Additions Dispasal/ As at As al Additions Disposal/ Asat Asat
April 1, 2621 during the year Adj March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 liuriu! the year Adj March 31, 2024 March 11, 2024
Intangible Assets 1521 = = 1521 4.82 4.81 8.63 558
1527 151 4.82 4.81 - 9.6 5.58
Naotes:
it There are no intesnally generated intangible assets,
(i} The Company has not carried out any revaluation of intangibla assats for the period ended March 31, 2025
(i} There are no other restriction on title of intangible assats
[iw) There are no axchange differences adjusted in intangible assets.
(v} The Company has nat acquired intangible assats free of charge, or for nomisal by way of & qrant
5 Right-of-use assats
Current parind Gross block (at cost) Accumulated smartisation Nt block
As at Additions Disposal/ As at Asat Additions Disposal/ Asat Asat
April 1, 2024 Additions Adjustment  March 31,2025 April 1, 2024 Additions Adjustment  March 31,2025 March 31,2025
Offica building 734 - = 134 4.84 147 - 631 1.03
7.34 = - T34 4.84 1.47 - 6.31 1.03
Gross block (at cost) Accumulsted amortisation Net block
Provieus Year Asat Additions Disposall As at Asat Additions Dizpuosal) A at Asat
April 1, 2023 Additions March 31, 2024 Apdl 1, 2023 Additions fud) March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2024
Office building T3k - - 734 138 146 = 484 250
7.34 = - T.34 318 146 - AB4 250
Maote

Please rofer note far

Varnya Steels Private Limited
(EIN: UT4999KAZ00SPTC125578)
Motes to the Financisl ststements for tha period ended March 31,2025

(AR amatt are in & Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

ind Diparaking lnasw daclosures




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amount are in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Capital work-in-progress As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance at the beginning 3,647.02 -
Addition during the period 5,099.45 4,161.01
B.746.47 4,161.01
Capitalised during the period
Plant and machinery 1112.45) 42722
Building-Others (21.65) 86.77
Balance at the end 8,612.37 3,647.02
Note:
Capital work-in-progress ageing
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Projects in progress
Less than 1 year 4970.09 3,647.02
1-2 years 3,642.28 =
8,612.37 3,647.02
Projects are being executed at a different locations invelving common procurements therefare project wise identification wrt Capital Work in progress is
not feasible.
The CWIP is as per Management Plan and estimate,
During the period Capital Work In Progress include Interest Capitalised amounting Rs. 280.87 lakhs & Salary Capitalised Amounting Rs.31.00 lakhs
7  Investments (non-current) As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Invastments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income:
A. Investment in equity instruments
Unquoted {Measured at FYTOCH)
Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited
65,322 shares of Rs 100 sach 14468 45.01
144.68 45.01
Notes:
(i) Carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Market value of unquated investments 144.68 -
Book value of unquoted investments 144 68 45.01

(ii) For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer nate 50,

(iii) There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.

(iv) The Company had invested in equity shares of Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited for procurement of power towards captive
consumption in Hospet unit. The management anticipates that the termination of contract in future (if any) would be at cost i.e. the amount
invested. The investment has been made anly for procuring the power and not for any financial benefit, However, considering the above facts, cost

of investment has been considered as its fair value.

8 Other financial assets (non-current)
Unsecured, considered good - at amortised cost
Security deposits
Sales tax deposit

Note:
For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

9 Non-current tax assets (net)

Income tax refundable (earlier years)

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

7532 209.33
0.10 0.10
75.43 209.43

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

11.19

2531

11.19

25.31




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: UT4999KAZ005PTC125578)

Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(Al amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Other non-current assets Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance with gavernment authorities 4417 -
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 170,18 76789
Prepaid expenses 4.66 29.69
219.01 797.58
11 lnventories As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw materials 6,101.45 2,284.67
Stores and spares 471.76 34680
Finished goods 2,302.50 819.94
By Product 1,102.08 1.270.47
Stock in Transit 549.73
-Raw Material -
-Stores and spares 66.56
10,044.36 5.271.61
Notes:
Inventories are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 46).
Finished goods also includes Semi Finished Goods & By-Products (not for further praduction process).
Stock in transit includes Raw Material, Stores and Spares etc,
Inventories of raw materials amounting to ¥ 3867.74 lakhs are measured at the lower of cost and replacement cost. The replacement cast reflects
the current markat price as of the reporting date. During the year, write-downs of 263.58 lakhs wera recagnized, as replacement cost was lower
than the histarical cost of certain raw materials, No reversals of such write-downs were recognized during the year,
12 Trade receivables As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 142324 489526
Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
Less: Impairment loss allowance (182.84) {18157)
1,240.40 4,713.69
Trade receivables ageing (Outstanding from date of transaction)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Undisputed trade ivables — idered good
0-6 months 1,148.64 464563
6-12 months 6545 5072
1-2 years 1163 2637
2-3 years 2023 0.26
More than 3 years 1773 17228
Undisputed trade ivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
6-12 Manths = =
1-2 years - -
2-3 years = =
More than 3 years = -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (182.84) (181.57)
1,240.42 4,713.69

Notes:

(i) The Company has measured expected credit loss of trade receivable as per Ind A5 109 ‘Financial Instruments {refer note 50).

(ii) Trade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 46),

(i) For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

{iw) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the Company's operating cycle.

[v) For trade receivables due from director or other officer of the Company and firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director
or a member either jointly or severally with other persons, refer autstanding balances mentioned in note 48,




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: UT4999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(AN amount are in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Cash on hand

14 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with maturity more than three months but less than twelve months

Note:

Above balances are held with bank as security in relation ta repayment of borrowings (refer note 46),

15 Loans (current)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to

-Employees

Note:

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

16 Other financial assets (current)

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

Earnest money deposits

Receivable on account of reimbursements
Accrued interest on deposits

Note:

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

17 Current tax assets {net)

Current tax asset (net)

18 Other current assets

Unsecured, considerad good
Prepaid expenses

Other Receivable

Advance to suppliers

Balance with government autherities
Unclaimed GST Input Tax

..Space intentionally left blank..

As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
356.69 2,660.85
3260 1461
389.29 2,675.46
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
54021 nzn
540.21 3211
As at As at
March 31,2025 Marech 31,2024
12.90 11.55
12.90 11.55
As at As at

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

34.05 32.88
3468 29.68
6.12 612
5.16 4,39
80.01 73.07
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2023
4742 -
4742 -
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
2032 2541
165.61 -
7.108.37 12,523.99
17968 39.33
8784
7,561.81 12,588.73
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(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the Financial stat ts for the period ended March 31,2025
(Al amount are in & Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Equity Share capital

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Authorised shares
Equity shares
1,65,00,000 shares of ¥ 10 each 1,650.00 1,650.00
0.01% Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of 10 each
2,35,00,000 shares of 10 each 2,350.00 2,350.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares
1.58,41,366 shares of # 10 each 1,584,114 1,584.14
1,584.14 1,584.14
(ii). Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period
15841 1,584.14 151.60 1,516.02
Shares issued during the period - - 6.81 68.12
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 158.41 1.584.14 158.41 1.584.14
(iii). Terms/rights attached to equity shares
Voting
Each sharehalder is entitled to one vote per share held. The Company has only one class of share capital having a par value of ¥ 10
per share, referred to herein as equity shares,
Dividends
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed, The
Company has not distributed any dividend in the current period and previous year.
Liquidation
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.
(iv). Equity shares held by holding company
Name of shareholders As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Number Percentag Number Percentage
A-One Steels India Limited 151,60 95.70% 151.60 95.70%
(formerly known as "A-One Steels India Private Limited" , "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited")
(v). Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share of the Company
Name of shareholders As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Number Per g Number Percentage
A-One Steels India Limited 151.60 95.70% 151.60 95.70%

(formerly known as "A-One Steels India Private Limited" , "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

{vi). Nao class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being raceived in cash, allotted as
fully paid up by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of 5 years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date.
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(CIN:
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Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{vii). Details of equity shares held by Promoters at the end of year

(wiii).

(ix).

20

(i).

(ii).

(iid).

(iii).

Name of promoters

A-One Steels India Limited

{formerly known as "A-One Steels India Private

Limited" , "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

Sandeep Kumar

As at

March 31,2025

As at

March 31,2024

No shares are reserved to be issued under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.

0.01% Non Cumulative ,Non Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of £9,90,000 of Rs 10 each have been issued on private
placement basis at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting on multiple dates for a period of 10 years. Out of total 59,90,000 shares,
5,50,000 shares have been redeemed at a premium of 6%.

Other equity

Retained earnings

Opening balance (RE)

Loss for the period

Dividend

Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Tax on Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Closing balance

Securities premium
Opening balance (SP)
Addition during the period
Closing balance

Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance (CRR)
Addition during the period
Closing balance

Revaluation Surplus
Opening balance (OC)
Addition during the period
Closing balance

% Change during the
iod P
Numbier Parcent-age of perio R urcent-age of

holding holding

151.60 95.70% 0.00% 151.60 95.70%

0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00 0.00%
151.60 95.70% 151.60 100.00%

As at As at

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

4,691.08 3,071.26
(985.27) 1,619.89
= (0.07)
(55.00) -
(21.47)
5.39
3,634.77 4,691.08
451472 2,082.84
= 2431.88
4,514.72 4,514.72
55.00 -
55.00 -
24291 24279
= 0,12
2420 242N
8,447.40 9,448.71
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(CIN:
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Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 21,2025
{All amount are in & Lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

().

{ii).

(iii).

(iv).

Nature and purpose of other equity:
Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the surplus/ (deficit) in profit and loss account and appropriations.

Securities premium
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It can only be utilised for
limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Capital Redemption Reserve

The Capital Redemption Reserve is mainly on account of redemption of 0.01% Non cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of
Rs.10 each out of Profits of the company as per the Provisions of Section 55 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 9 of the
Companies(Share capital and debentures) Rules 2014 as amended,

Revaluation surplus

The Company recognises increase in carrying amouint as a result of a revaluation in other comprehensive income. The Company
transfers amount of revaluation surplus directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised.

...Space intentionally left blank...
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21

22

23

24

25

26

Beorrowings (non-current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans:
'- from banks Term Loan (refer note 46)
Less: Current maturities

Vehicle loans:
- from banks Vehicle Loan (refer note 46)
Less: Current maturities

Unsecured - at amortised cost
From related parties (refer note 48 and 46)
Privately placed non-cumulative redeamable preference shares (refer note 19 and note 46)

Note:

For terms and Conditions refer note 46

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
For Related Party Transactions refer note 48

Lease liabilities (non-current)

Lease liabilities

Note:
For explanation an the Company's liquidity risk management process, rafar note 50.
Refer Mote 47 for lease liabilities

Provisions (non-current)
Provision for employee fi
Provision for gratuity (refer note 45)
Pravision for compensated absences (rafer note 45)

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities {net) (refer note 52)

Other non-current liabilities

Capital creditors
Daferred fair value gain on account of preference shares
Deferred fair value gain on account of unsecured loans

Borrowings (current)

Secured - at amortised cost

Working capital demand loans from banks (refer note 46)

Cash credit from banks (refer note 46)

Current maturities of nan-current borrowings (refer nate 20)

(Refer note no. 53 for reconciliation of stock statement vs books of accounts)
Unsecured - at amortised cost

From related parties (refer note and )

Bills discounted payable (Unsecured)

Note:
For terms & conditions, repayment and nature of security given, refer note 46)
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50,

As at
March 31,2025

Asat
March 31,2024

3,072.62 5,056.34
11,556.45) (2.449.57)
29.67 4722
(19.67) (17.95)
451187 762.58
35521 340.19
6,393.25 3,738.81
As at As at
March 21,2025 March 31,2024
- 1.24
5 1.24
Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
68.19 2795
16.21 16.17
84.40 4412
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
26.51 282.19
26.51 282.19
Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
188.28 88.61
19543 261.69
1,709.42 28861
2,093.13 638.91
As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
6,500.00 4,500.00
1474.72 1,983.29
1.576.12 2467.52
13733
9,688.17 8,950.81




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(Al amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27 Lease liabilities (current) As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Lease liabilitias 1.24 1.63
1.24 1.63
Note:
Far explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
28 Trade payables As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Trade payables due:
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 59.53 zm
[ii} total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5,38743 11,981.11
(it} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - disputed dues - -
(iv} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - disputed
dues = =
5,445.96 12,013.92
Notes:
(it For disclosures relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 refer nate 44
(ii) For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
{iii) Trade payables ageing
Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Dues of micro and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 38.08 1138
1-2 years - 2145
2-3 years 2145 =
More than 3 years - -
Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprisas
Unbilled Dues ' 18145 172.25
Less than 1 year 517892 11,359.17
1-2 years 14,10 443,84
2-3 years 9.10 1.99
Maore than 3 years 386 386
5,446.96 12,013.92
29 Other financial liabilities (current) As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Payable for capital goods 674.91 37.19
Employees related payable 5038 38.68
Unpaid Dividend (22-23) - 0.09
725.29 75.96
Note:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
30 Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Advance from customers 1,682.00 763.65
Statutory dues payable 8473 393.06
Deferred fair value gain on account of preferance shares 4384 4761
Deferred fair value gain on account of unsecured loans 495.46 79.53
2,306.03 1,283.85
31 Provisions (current) Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Provision for employee benefits
Pravision for gratuity (refer note 45) 1.02 0.69
Pravision for compensated absences - Current (refer note 45) 0.33 041
1.35 1.10
32 Current tax liabilities (net) Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Current tax liabilities (nat) - 267.84

267.84
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Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025

(ANl amount are in & Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32

33

34

R from ti

L

Sale of products

Other operating revenues

Sales of Praducts includes Sale of Traded Goods amounting to Rs.4895.53 lakhs

Information required as per Ind AS 115:

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets

Revenue from customers based in India
Revenue from customers based outside India

Timing of revenue recognition
Transferred at a point in time
Transferred over time

Trade receivables and contract assets/(liabilities)

Trade receivables
Contract liability (Advance from customers)

Performance cbligation and remaining performance obligation

For the Period ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

44,689.57 60,882.37
42.50
44,732.07 60,882.37
For the Period ended For the year ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

There are no remaining performance obligations for the period ended June 30, 2024, as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services.

Other income

Interest income
- on fixed deposits
- on security deposits
- on security deposits using EIR method
- on deferred fair value gain of preference shares
- on deferred fair value gain of unsecured loans
- on others (Interest Income)

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain

Sundry Balances Written Back

Miscellaneous income

Cast of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw material

Add: Purchases

Add: Handling Charges

Add: Freight, transportation and loading charges
Add: Liquidated Damages

Add: Import expenses and high sea purchase expenses

Add: Royalty expenses
Add: Compensation cess
Less: Closing stock of raw material

43,133.03 55,812.81
1,599.04 5,069.56
44,732.07 60,882.37
1,240.40 4,71369
1,682.00 763.65
For the Period ended For the year ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

476 9.03
488 439
10.27 954
44.87 47.61
242.78 10.27
- 0.14
7.19 -
60.00 -
14.57 763
389.32 88.61
For the Period ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
3,181.20 6,828.99
41,881.48 43,523.55
25.80 7027
3,89335 4,435.74
221.21 -
0.66 34.02
- 315.28
55376 519.42
(6,639.77) (3,181.20)
43,117.69 52,646.07

The Company Procures the raw material with an intention to use in the manufacturing process, however based on the opportunities available the company
wants to make sale of the raw material. Therefore the entire purchase is shown under Cast of Material Consumed.
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35 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening stock
-Finished goods
-By Products

Closing stock

-By Products
-Finished goods

36 Employee benefit exp

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances

Employers' contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity (refer note 45)

Staff and labour welfare expenses

37 Finance costs

Interest expenses
- on borrowings
- on preference shares
- an lease liabilities (refer note 47)
- on late payment of statutory dues
- on fair valuation of Unsecured Loans
- on fair valuation of Securtiy Deposits
- on amartization of Processing Fees
‘- on late payment to suppliers
‘- Vehicle Loans

Other borrowing costs

Less: Borrowing costs capitalised during the period (refer note 6)

38 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amartisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 5)

For the Period ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

819.94 467.39
1,270.47 1,302.25
(1,102.08) (1,270.47)
(2,302.50) (819.94)
(1,314.17) (320.77)
For the Period ended For the year ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

520.64 494,11
2435 2363
19.15 11.83
29.25 58.83
593.39 588.40
For the Period ended For the year ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

1,135.39 1,043.57
48.24 38.61
0.17 0.30
52.64 B8.09
204.15 9.78
1017 1017
10.29 1.2

e om

332 483
3325 16.16
(2B0.87) (148.05)
1.216.75 990.59

For the Period ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
606.50 577.62
482 481
147 1.47
612.79 583.90
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Other expenses

Power, fuel and diesel

Village welfare and development expenses
Sitting Fees

Freight and forwarding (net)

Commission expenses

Testing and inspection charges

Security charges

Rent and hire charges {refer note 46)
Insurance

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional expenses

Charity and donations

CSR expenses (refer note 42)

Repairs and maintenance expenses
Impairment of trade receivables (refer note 49)
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Miscellaneous expenses

Notes:

of r tion to auditors (excluding GST)

- as auditor
« for statutory audit
« for tax audit

Earning per share

{a). Basic and diluted earnings per share

From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company

(b). Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Prafit from continuing operation attributable to the equity share holders

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the pany used in calcul
earnings per share
{c). Weighted average ber of sh used as the denominator

ing basic and diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and

For the Period ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
710.25 647.95
5.26 7494
140 -
611.78 2,734.37
47175 62.01°
10.56 12.02
60.03 55.82
251.08 337.36
2252 26.14
32.58 3224
11.66 1292
79.26 62.00
15.12 6.68
34.04 41.22
199.56 185.53
127 (37.68)
- 1032
14.17 29.58
2,108.29 4,299.42
For the Period ended Fer the year ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

2.50 2.50

0.60 0.50

3.10 3.00
For the Period ended For the year ended

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

(6.22) 10.37
(985.27) 1,619.89
(985.27) 1.619.89
158.41 156.22

The Company has not issued any instrument that is potentially dilutive in the future, Hence, the weighted average number of

shares outstanding at the end of the period for calculation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the same.
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(i)

42

43
(i)

Contingent liabilities and commitments Aszat As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Litigations
GST Matters {refer note i) 972.89 a771.73
Income Tax matters (refer note i) 2896 28.96
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account rot provided for (net of capital advances of March
31,2025): Rs.170.18 lakhs (net of capital advances of March 31 2024): Rs.767.89 lakhs 1,696.81 4,281.73

Notes:
Contingent liability with respect to Income Tax matters is for search action conducted under Section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and various demands
received for AY19-20 to AY23-24,

Name of the statute Nature Fonunvtheen thacigpiite. || | Reciitto whichahe | @i i i Lakdi)
is pending amount relates
The Incoma-Tax Act, 1961 Income tax Assessment ::xmmnssloner AT AY19-20 24.79
The Income-Tax Act, 1961 Incame tax Assessment Ceniralised Hocesing AY23-24 236
Centre (Income Tax)
The Income-Tax Act, 1961 Income tax Assessment Cantrallsed Pracessing AY20-21 180
Centre {Income Tax)

Contingent liability with respect to GST matters is for demand order under G5T Act.

Following are the forums, where the di are pending:
Name of the statute MNature Foviy ‘_"h." e dispute Poresith it the Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)
is panding t relates
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 Appeal Deputy C FY18-19 33.28
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 Appeal Deputy Cor FY17-18 B44.45
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 Appeal Deputy C Fy15-20 90.53
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 Appeal Joint € Fy23-24 4.63

* The above amount includes the deposit made to the GST Department in respect of the disputed liability.

Expenditure on C5R activities

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of average net prafits of the Company made during the
three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy in respect of activities specified in Schedule VIl of te Companies Act, 2013, The details of CSR expenses for

the period are as under:

For the Period ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 21,2024
Amount required to be spent during the period 46,80 4039
Shortfall/ (Excess) amount of previous year 113.95) (713}
Total 32.84 3326
Amount spent during the period on

- construction/acquisition of any property, plant and equipment -

- purposes other than above 34.04 4722
Total 34.04 4722
Shortfall/ (Excess) amount carried forward to next year [1_22! {13.96)
Note:

Nature of CSR activities
The amount has been spent on various activities such as education which is mentioned in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013,
Information required under Section 186{4) of the Companies Act, 2013
Investments
The company has made | its of Rs. 45.01 Lakhs in Other than subsidiaries as at 31st March 2025,
In terms of Section 22 of Chapter V of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006), the disclosures of
pay ts due to any supplier are as foll,
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any MSME supplier as at the
end of each accounting year included in:

- Trade payables 3no8 11.36

- Trade payables for Capital Goods 10.23 -

- Interest due 21.45 2145

69.76

3281
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-

The principal ameunt and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting period:-
- Principal

- Interest due

The amount of interest paid by the company under MSMED Act, 2006 alang with the amounts of the

paymant made to the supplier beyond the appointed day duning each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyand the appaintment day during the peried) but without adding the Interest spacified
under the MSMED Act, 2006,

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting periad.

L, o

even in the

The amount of further interest remaining due and pay years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans:
The Comp makes contrk
which are defined contril

loss as they accrue.

E owspkie it Sustion phaus iciel

plans. The Company has na

Employer's cantribution to provident fund
Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity

38.08

2145

1136

2145

2145

2145

determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards providant fund and labour welfare fund
15 other than to make the specified contributions. The cantributions are charged ta the statement of profit and

For the Pericd ended For the ysar ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
18,30 16,80
18.30 16.80

The Campany operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity, This plan entitles an employee to raceive half manth's salary for each year of completed service at the

time of retirement/exit

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognise each period of service as giving rise to additional

employee benefit entitlement and measuras each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The most racent actuarnial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2025 The present value of the
defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Net defined benefit Hability/(asset)

Present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Total employee benefit liabilities/{assets)

Nan-current
Current

The details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recognized in the financial statemaents as at March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Particulars

Change in defined benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the beginning of the period
Service Cost

Interest expense

Past service cost - plan amendments
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains) /losses
Benefits paid

Benefits obliged at the end of the peried

The amount for the periods ended March 31,2025 recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
follows:
Particulars

Service Cost

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset
Plan Amendments :

Net gratuity cost

As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
6921 28.64
69.21 2864
68.19 27,95
l.02 0.69

As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
28.65 17.92
mn 10.19
2.05 134
2141 0.18)
5 10.64)
£5.22 2865

benefit exg isas
Far the Period ended For the Year Ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
1 10.19
2.05 1.34
15.16 1153
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The amount for the periods ended March 31,2025 gnised in the of other prehensive i is as follows :

For the Period ended For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to demographic assumption changes in DBO - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to Financial assumption changes in DBO - 20
Actuarial {gains) / losses due to experience adjustment on DBO 2141 (rA K|
{Return) loss on the plan assets due to discount rate = =

21.41 (0.16)
Plan assets
Asat As at

Plan assets comprizes of the following: March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Total plan assets - -
Funds managed by insurer - =
% of Plan assets - =

Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the accounting date with
a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are
as follows which have been selacted by the Company.

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Discount rate 6.90% 1.15%

Expected rate of future salary increase 10% for the first three 10% for the first three

years and 7% thersafter  years and 7% thereafter

Expected rate of attrition 1% - 3% 1% - 3%
Martality IALM 2012-14 lALM 2012-14
Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably passible changes at the reporting date to one of the rel t actuarial ptions, halding ather assumptions canstant, wauld have affected the defined banefit
obligation by the amounts shown below:
March 21,2025 March 31,2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1.00% mavement) 58.09 B320 2456 13865
Future salary growth (1.00% movemant) 82,98 58.05 3358 24,54
Attrition rate (50.00% of attrition rate movement) 68,57 69.87 28.36 2892
Mortality Rate (10.00% of mortality rate movemant) 69.20 69.21 2864 26,64

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an 1 of the itivity of the pli

shown,

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum
benefit on retirement.

Description of Risk Exp

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as follows:
a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate ption in future valuations will also increase the liability,

b). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's llability,
). Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

d). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher ar lower than assumed withdrawals and change of

| rates at subsequent valuations can impact the plan's liability,

Exg 4 maturity lysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Asat As at

Duration of defined benefit obligati March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Upto 1 Year 1.02 0.69
Between 2-5 Years 73 245
Between 6-10 Years 15.22 861
Over 10 Years 27422 9584
Total 297.77 107.59

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at March 31,2025 is 19 years.
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Defined benefit plans:

2 Earned Leave Plan

The Company operates an Earned Leave Plan, This plan entitles an employee right to accumulate and carry forward his leave to a future period or

encash the leave.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognise each period of
service as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the Leave Liability for Leave Encashment were carried out as at Mar 31, 2025, The
present value of the Leave Liability and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Net defined benefit liability/(asset)
Prasent value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Total employee benefit liabilities/(assets)

Meon-current
Current

The details of the defined benefit plans and the

are as follows:
Particulars

Present Value of Obligation as at the end
Fair Value of Plan Assets

Surplus / (Deficit)

Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any

Net Asset / (Liability)

The amount for the periods ended March 31, 2025 rec

d in the stat

£l

ployee benefit exp is as
Present value of obligation as at the beginning
Present value of obligation as at the end
Benefit Payment

Actual return on plan assets

Transfer In / (Out)

Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:
Total plan assets

Funds managed by insurer
% of Plan assets

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
16.54 16.59
16.54 16.59
16.21 16,17
0.33 04
d in the fi ial stat ts as at March 31, 2025
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
16.54 16.59
(16.54) (16.59)
(16.54) (16.59)
t of Profit and Loss account under
16.59 71.37
16.54 16.59
- 0.28
(0:05) 9.50
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
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Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government
bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors on long term basis, Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company.

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.90% 7.15%
Expected rate of future salary increase 10% for the first three 10% for the first
years and 7% thereafter  three years and 7%
thereafter
Expected rate of attrition 1% - 3% 1% - 3%
Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the Leave Liability by the amounts shown below:

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1.00% movement) 1427 19.30 14.40 19.26
Future salary growth {1.00% movement) 19.26 14.26 19.23 14.39
Attrition rate (50.00% movement) 16.50 16.57 16.60 16.58
Mortality Rate (10.00% mavement) 16.53 16.53 16.59 16.59

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are
not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as
follows:

a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability.

b). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

c). Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases praving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

d). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations
can impact the plan’s liability.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Duration of Leave Liability As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Upto 1 Year 0.33 041
Between 2-5 Years 247 1.94
Between 6-10 Years 6.08 6,02
Over 10 Years 4845 50.23

Total 57.33 58.60
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46 Terms & conditions, repayment and nature of security of non-current and current borrowings

Lender Name Loan |Amount of Loan/| Interest Rate Tenure EMI Start Date Amount cutstanding as at
Sanction Limit (in months) March 31,2025 |March 31, 2024
MNon-current
Secured term loans from banks (refer Note | & iv)
Axis Bank Limited Loan 1 140000 {9.60% 72 {including 3 months | July 31, 2019 - 363.39
maoratorium)
Axis Bank Limited Loan 2 AT100 |9.25% 48 {including 12 months |September 30, 2021 - 18.64
moratorium}
Axis Bank Limited Loan 3 2.100.00 |9.60% 66 {including 12 months |April 1, 2022 582.80 1.255.94
moratorium]
Axis Bank Limited Loan 4 B26.00 |9.25% 54 (including 24 manths ber 30, 2023 226.06 539.06
moratoriem.
Auis Bank Limited Loan 5 6. 160.00 |9.15% 54 (including 12 manths |March 31, 2024 2,253.76 23N
moratornu
Total term loans from banks 3.072.62 5,056.34
Secured vehicle loans from banks (refer Note ii & iv)
HDFC Bank Limited Loan B 4155 [7.85% A7 September 27, 2022 16.55 2&%
IDFC First Bank Limited Laan 7 3500 1998% 60 MNovermnber 2, 2021 1312 2024
Total vehicie loans from banks 29.67 47.22
Unsecured loans (refer Note v}
From related parties 6.894.17 4 to 6 years Mar'23 to Mar'0 4,649.20 76258
Privately placed nor lati i bie prefi & 669,00 After 10 yoars Mar'30 to Mar'31 355.21 34019
Jshares (refer Note v & vi)
5.004.41 1.102.77
Current
Cash Credit from Banks
Axis Bank Limited [refer Note i) Loan 8 1,600.00 |8.90% Repayable on Demand | NA 147472 -
Total Werking capital demand loans from banhs 1,474.72 -
Working capital demand loans from banks
| Aois Bank Limited [refer Note i) Loan 9 4,500.00 |£.90% Repayable on Demand  |NA 4,500.00 4,500.00
YES Bank Limited (refer Note iii) Loan 10 2,000.00 [8.85% Ike;iable on Demand  |NA 2,000.00 1,983.29
6,500.00 648329
Total Bonu\uilm 16,081.42 12,689.62

.Continued on next page
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Notes:
(i)  Security given for loans to Axis Bank Limited iu as follows{Loan 1,2,3,45,8 & 9)
Primany:

Cash credit (CC) & Working Capital Demand Loans (WCDL)

- Tst charge Pari Passu by way of Hypothecation on all mevable praperty plant & equipment of the company.

- 1t charge Pari Passu by way of Hypothecation on Current Assets.

- 1st charge Pari Passu by way of Equitable Mortgage of non-agricultural land situated Koppal District in Hirebaganal Village, Koppal Taluk in Survey Mo. 52/A, 52/B, 53, 54, 55, 48, 58 &
45/A in the nama of the Company.

- 13t charge Pari Passu by way of Equitable Mortgage factory land Plot No. Sy No. 57-62 Village Hierbaganal Taluk, Koppal District, Karnataka - 583228 in the name of the Company,

Term loans

- Equitable Mortgage of all piece and parcel of factory land Plot No. Sy Na. 57-62 Village Hierbaganal Taluk, Koppal District, Karnataka - 583228 with sheds and building total measuring
39 acres and 25 guntas, property in the name of Vanya Steels Private Limited.

- Equitable mortgage of non-agricuftural land situated at Koppal Districts in at Hirebaganal Village, Koppal Taluk in Survey No.S2/4, 52/8, 53, 54,55 48 58 & 45/A measuring serial 03-10
Acros, 02 acres, 02 Acres, 04-36 Acres, 05-10 acres, 05-08 acres, 04-37 acres, 02-34 acres, 05- Dlacress, Total extent of 33 acres 15 gunitas standing in the name of Vanya Steels Private
Timited.

- Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of moveable property plant & equipment reimbursed by way of disbursement of the term loan,

Collaterak

- Equitable Mortgage of non-agricultural land situated Koppal District in Hirsbaganal Village, Koppal Taluk in Survey Mo 52/4, 52/B, 53, 54, 55, 48, 58 & 45/A measuring serial 03-10

acres, 02 acres, 02 acres, 04-36 acres, 05-10 acres, 05-08 acres, 04-37 acres, 02-34 acres; 05-00 acress. Total extent of 33 acres 15 guntas standing in the name of Vanya Steels Private
Limited

- Extension of Equitable Mortgage of all piece and parcel of factory land Plot No, Sy No. 57-62 Village Hierbaganal Taluk, Koppal District, Karnataka - 583228 with sheds and building
total measuring 39 acres and 25 guntas, property in the name of Vanya Steels Private Limited.

property plant & equipment of the Company.

- Exclusive charge by way of hyp atian af

Pemsonal Guarantes:
- Sunil Jallan - Director
- Sandeep Kumar - Director

Corporaie Gurantee:
- A-One Steels India Limited - Holding Company
(farmerly knawn as "A-One Steels India Private Limited” , "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited”}

(i)  Security for vehicle loans from banks (Loans § & 7)
Vehicle loans from HOFC Bank Limited and IDFC First Bank Limited are sacured by way of Hypothecation of the Vehicles financed by the lender.

(iii) Security given for working capital demand loans to YES Bank Limited {Loan 10 )

Security dutails:

- 1st charge Pari Passu by way of Hypothecation on all movable propesty plant & equipment of the company.

= 1st charge Pari Passu by way of Hypothecation on Current Assets.

- 1st charge Pari Passu by way of Equitable Mortgage of non-agricultural land situated Keppal District in Hirebaganal Village, Koppal Taluk in Survey No. 52/A, 52/8, 53, 54, 55, 48, 58 &
45/A in the name of the Campany.

~ st charge Pan Passu by way of Equitable Martgage factory land Plot Me. Sy Ne. 57-62 Village Hierbaganal Taluk, Koppal District, Karnataka - 583228 in the name of the Company.
Personal Guarantes:

- 5unil Jallan - Director
- Sandeep Kumar - Director

Corporaie Guantee;
- A-One Steels India Limited - Holding Company iformery known as "A-Ona Steel and Alloys Private Limited”, "A-One Steals India Private Limitad")

(iv)  Secured term loans and vehicle loans fram banks are inclusive of current maturities.

(v}  Unsecured loans from related parties and athers and Privately placed cumulati ! bie pref = shares are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost in accordance with Ind AS 109,

(vi} Terms/rights attached to preference shares
0.01% Non Cumulative Non C ible Red: bl shares of 69,90,000 of Rs 10 each have been issued on private placemant basis at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting
on multiple dates for a period of 10 years. Out of total 69,%0,000 shares, 5,50,000 shares have been redeemed at a premium of 6%.

{wii) During the period, the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans to any lender, Further, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or o or any g

stharis
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a7
A.
1.

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

{vi) For reconciliation of carrying amount of right-of-use assets and details thereof refer note 5.

Leases

Leases as a lessee

Non-exempted leases

Movement in lease liabilities

Opening balance

Additions on account of new lease contracts entered into during the period
Finance cost accrued during the period

Payment of lease liabilities*
Closing balance

Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Current |ease liabilities
Naon-current lease liabilities

Maturity analysis of lease lizbilities

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
2.87 437
07 0.30
(1.80) (1.80)
1.24 2.87
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
1.24 163
- 1.24
1.24 2.87

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at period end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-exempted leases are
payable as follows:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

- later than five years

of profit and loss

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Finance costs on lease liabilities

A tr inised in t of cash flows

Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities

2 Exempted Leases
The Company has recognised ¥ 12.25 lakhs as rent expenses during the period which pertains to short term lease/ low value asset

which was not recognised as part of right of use asset.

As at March 31, 2025

Lease payments Finance charges

128 014

- 0.01

1.28 0.15

For the Period ended For the Period ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

147 147

017 0.30

1.64 1.79

For the Period ended For the Period ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

1.80 1.80

1.80 1.80
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48 Related party disclosures

The related parties as per terms of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with

Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 are disclosed below:

A. List of related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place

Nature of relationship Name of related party

Helding company A-One Steels India Limited
(formerly known as "A-Cne Steels India Private Limited" , "A-One
Steal and Alloys Private Limited")

Fellow subsidiary company A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited

Basai Steels and Power Private Limited (from 23rd November, 2024)

Enterprises in which person, who exercise control over the A One Gold Singapore Pte Ltd
Company, have significant influence or control or is/are KMP A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited
Laksh Steels
Bellary Tubes Corparation
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Sunil Jallan Diractor
Sandeep Kumar Director
Sukanya Acharya Independent Director
Kamaldeep Singh Independent Directar
Pardeep Garg CFO (appointed on 13/11/24)
Pooja Sara Magaraja Company Secretary
Relatives of KMPs Priya Jallan Wife of Director

Enterprises in which Directors are Interested

Shri Gouri Shankar Jalan Charitable Trust
A-One Gold Retail Private Limited

B. Transactions with related parties during the period are as following: -

Name of Related Party and Nature of Transactions For the Period ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of goods
A-One Steels India Limited 483294 11,833.47
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 40.86 11.83
Bellary Tubes Corporation 1,085.20 1,106.75
Laksh Steels 113N 184183
4 One Gald Singapore Pte Ltd 1,599.04 3,337.61
Purchase of goods
A-One Steels India Limited 9.993.10 B,406.45
Laksh Steels 13176 1,280.16
Bellary Tubes Carporation 1,50343 9,084.95
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 154.93 57.21
Purchase of property, plant & equipment
A-One Steels India Private Limited * 2.18
Purchase of CWIP/PPE
A-One Steels India Limited 11483 24432
Laksh Steels 1363 114
Purchase of Investment
A-One Steels India Limited 99,67 -
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Handling Charges

A-One Steels India Limited 10.62 -

Bellary Tubes Corporation - 32,57
Loading and Unloading Charges

A-Dne Steels India Limited 657 -
Liguidated Damages

Bellary Tubes Corporation 22121 -
Borrowings taken

Sandeep Kumar 3,267.00 350.00

Sunil Jallan 249500 643,00
Borrowings repaid

Sunil Jaltan - 744

Sunil Jaltan - 873
Interest Expense on Borrowings

Sandeep Kumar 9327 4N

Sunil Jallan 110.88 507
Personal G tee Taken/ (Satisfied)

Sandeep Kumar (1,400.00) -

Sunil jallan (1,400.00) FS
Interest on lease liabilities

A-One Steels India Limited Q.17 031
Payment of lease liabilities

A-One Steels India Limited 1.80 180
Balance outstanding with or from related parties as at:
Name of Related Party and N of Bal. As at Asat

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables

A-One Steels India Limited = 2,295.05

A One Gold Singapore Pte Ltd 980.83 4677

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 037 -

Laksh Stesls - 14.24
Lease Liabilities

A-One Steels India Limited 124 287
Receivable on account of reimbursements

A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited 612 612

A-Dne Gold Retail Private Limited 001 -
Advance to Suppliers

Bellary Tubes Corporation = 2.762.14

A-One Steels India Limited 20794 4,850.00

Laksh Steels 14756 1.078.00
Trade Payable/ Ad e from cust

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited - 494

Bellary Tubes Corporation - 052
Borrowings

Sandeep Kumar 246333 417.0

Sunil Jallan 218588 71531
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Corporate g taken (U i

A-One Steels India Limited 16,360.00 17,760.00
P lg taken (U |

Sandaep Kumar 16,360.00 17,760.00

Sunil Jallan 16,360.00 17,760.00
Salary payable

Pardeep Garg [CFO) 879 -
Sitting Fees Payable

Sukanya Acharya 080 -

Kamaldeep Singh 0.80 =
Capital Creditors

A-One Steels India Limited 99.67 -

D. Comp tion of Key Managerial P |
The compensation of directors and other member of Key Managerial Personnel during the period was as follows:
Name of KMP Nature of Compansation For the Period ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Pooja Sara Nagaraja (Company Secretary) Short Term Employee Benefits 288 260
Pardeep Garg (CFO) Short Term Employee Benefits 365 -
Sukanya Acharya Sitting Fees 0.60 =
Kamaldeep Singh Sitting Fees 0.80 -
7.93 2.60

E. Terms and Conditions

(i} Mo guarantes fees have been paid for carporate guarantee and personal guarantee taken from holding company and KMPs respectively.
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(0}

(ii)

Operating segments

The company is primarily engaged in manufacturing of sponge iron and other steel products, Accordingly there are no seperate reportable business

segments.
Details of major geographical information and major customers is presented as under:

Revenues from different geographies For the Period ended  For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 43,133.03 55.812.81
Outside India 1,599.04 5.069.56
44,732.07 60,882.37
Non-current assets® As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 16,661.35 12,712.59
Outside India = i
16,661.35 12,712.59
*Mon-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets
Major customer
Revenue from transactions with external customer amounting te 10 per cent or more of the Campany's revenue is as follows:
Customer name Amount Amount
For the period ended March 31,2025
A-One Steels India Limited 4,832.94 11,833.47
{formerly known as "A-One Steels India Private Limited" , "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited")
4,832.24 11,833.47
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.Cantinued from previous page

Fair value hisrarchy

Level 1: Itincludes financial instruments measurad using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuati hriques which the use of ot ble market
data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are abservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 2: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, The fair value of financial assets and fiabilities
included in Level 3 is d d in d. with g lly accapted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

The carrying amounts of trace recaivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liahilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature. Fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

Valuation processes
The Management performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilitias required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair values,

. Financial risk management
The Company has axposure to the fallowing risks arising from financial instruments:
* Credit risk
« Liquidity risk
= Market risk
. Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit nsks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31.2025 March 31, 2024
Investmants 144,58 4501
Trada racaivables 1,240.40 4,713.6%
Cash and cash eguivalents 389.29 267548
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 540,21 zn
Loans 1290 11.55
Other financial assets 155.43 282.48
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises lly from
the Company’s receivables from customers.
The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customers, The Company maintains a defined credit palicy and monitors the exposures to these cradit risks on an
ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with scheduled commercial banks with high credit ratings
igned by d ic cradit rating
Fimanecial instruments that are subject to cradit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables, balances with bank, bank depasits, and
financial guarantees provided by the Company. Mone of the financial instruments of the Campany result in material concentration of credit risk except Trade receivables. The
Company’s expasure to customers is diversified. In respect of financial quarantees provided by the Company to banks/financial instituti the i exposure which the
Company Is exposed to is the maximum amount which the Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on the expectation at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is mare likely than not that such an amount will not be payable under the guarantees provided.
The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade ivables. Trade ivables are d and are derived fram revenue earned from
customers primarily located in India. The Company does maniter the sconomic enviranment in which it operates and the Company manages its Credit risk through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and conti Iy itering eredit hil of ¢ to which the Company grants eredit terms in the nermal course of business.
On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected cradit loss modal to assess the impairment loss or gain, The Company establishes an allawance for impairment that
represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach {i.e, based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss
allowance, tha Company estimates amounts based on the business environment in which the Company operates, and management considers that the trade recejvables are in
default (credit impaired) when counter party fails to make payments as per terms of salefservice agreements. However the Company based upen historical experience
i ine an impai t all, fer loss on bles.
When a trade receivable is credit impaired, it is written off against trade receivables and the amount of the loss is racognised in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries of
amaunts previously written off are credited to the income statement.
The Company believes that the unimpaired amounits that are past due by mare than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.
The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:
[Farticutars As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Less than 180 days past due 1,148.64 464565
180-365 days 6545 5072
365-730 days 11.63 26.37
More than 730 days 197.53 17253
Total 142335 489526
M in the all for imp in respect of trade receivables: For the Period ended  For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 37, 2024
Balance at the beginning 181.57 219325
Impairment loss recognised 1.27 137.68)
Impairment lass utilised - -
Balance at the and 18284 8157
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(i),

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that ara settlad by delivering cash or anather financial assst. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
withaut incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk g implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when
due. The Campany's palicy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from Company companies to meet its liquidity requiremants
in the short and long term,

The C: 's Hiquidity g process as monitored by includes the foll
- Day to Day funding, managed by monitoring future cash fows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining ralling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows

Expasure to liquidity risk
The following are the ramaining cantractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:

Carrying Contractual eash flows
As at March 31,2025 Less than one | Betwesn one to Maore than

amount Total

b five yoars five yoars

Borrowings T6.08141 342981 B,668.94 387.00 1248575
Lease liabilities 124 1.28 - - 128
Trade payables 5,446.96 544696 - - 5.446.96
(Other financial liabilities 725.29 725.30 - - 725.30
Total 22.254.91 9,603.35 8,668.94 3_37.00 18.655.28

Coiveia Contractual cash flows
As at March 31,2024 Less thanone | Betwesn one to More than

amount Total

yoar five yoars five

Borrowings 12,689 62 8,950,871 339862 340,19 12,689.62
Leasa liabilities 2.87 163 124 - 287
Trade payables 1201393 12,013.93 - - 12,013.93
Other financial liabilities 75.96 75.96 - = 75,96
Total 24,782.38 21,042.34 J,IL.HG 340.19 24, 752.38 -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of fisk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and interest rate risk, The objective of market risk management is to manage and cantrol market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while aptimising the return,

a, Interast rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becsuse of changes in market interest rates. The Company's main interest rate risk arises from lang-term
borrowings with variable rates, which expase the Company to cash flow interest rate risk,

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly fram the term loans fram banks carrying flaating rate of interest. These abligations exposes the Company ta cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of
the Company’s borrawing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

" 1 Asat As al
Variable-rate instruments 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Secured term loans 307262 505634
‘Working capital demand loans 1,465.41 4,500.00
Cash Credits - 1.983.29
Total i,i.ﬂ] 11,539.63
Cash flow itivity analysis for variable-rate i
The sensitivity analyses below have been d ined based on the exp to interast rates at the end of the reporting period,

Far floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year, A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk | lly to key p | and represents ‘s of the bly
possible change in interest rates.
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
—5= !TF‘IEX___
increase 50 bps decrease incroase 50 bps decrease
Secured term loans

Far the period ended March 31,2025 {15.38) 15.36 {11.50) 11.50

For the year encled March 31, 2024 125.28) 2528 {18.92) 1892
Waorking capital demand loans

For the period ended March 31,2025 (7.33) 733 [5.48) 548

For the year ended March 31, 2024 12250} 2250 {16.84) 16,84
Cash Credits

For the period ended March 31,2025 - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2024 19.92) 952 (742} 742

b. Currency risk
Currancy risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is uposzd ta the effects of

ﬂu:tuntlcn in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates an its financial position and cash flows to the extent of earnings lnd P in foreign e . Exposure arises
ly due to axchanga rate fi ions between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's i ting and fi ing activities.
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Exposure to foreign currency risk
The carrying ameunts of the Campany's foreign currency denaminated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reparting period are as follaws:

As at As at

Particulars ation March 31,2025 March 31,2025

Foreign currency Equivalent ¥ | Foreign y Equivalent ¥
Recaivables
Trace Receivables Uso 1146 980.83 0.56 46.77
Unhedged receivables 11.46 980.83 0.56 46.77

ables
Trade payables usb - - - =
Letter of Credit usb - - - =
Unhedged payablas/(Receivables)
et unhedged foreign currency

exposure uso 980.83 46.77

Fareign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 50 bps and decrease in the INR (¥) against USD, 50 bps is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally ta key g p { and r g ‘s of the bly possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated manetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 50 bps change in foreign currency rates. In case of net
fareign currency outflow, a positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity whera the # strengthens 50 bps agamnst the relevant currency. For a 50 bps weakening
of the ¥ against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative, In case of net foreign currency
inflow, a pasitive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity whare the ¥ weakens 50 bps against the relevant currency. For a 50 bps strengthening of the ¥ against

the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit er equity, and the balances below would be nigative,

Profit or loss Equity. net of tax
50 bpa 50 bps 50 bps 50 bps
[ decrease i d
usp
For the period ended March 31,2025 0.06 (0.06) 004 10.04)
Far the year ended March 31, 2024 0.28 10.28) 021 021y

USD: United States Dollar

Capital managemant
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity resarves.

Managemaent assesses the Company’s capital i in order to maintain an efficient averall financing structure. The Company manages the capital structure and mahes
adjustmants ta it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to sharehalders, raise new dabt or issue new shares.

The Company menitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as intarest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts)

Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 11, 2024
Barrowings 11.214.34 11,586.86
Less: Cash and bank balances 929.50 270757
Adjusted net debt (4) 10,284.83 8,879.29
Total equity (B) 10,355.94 11,032.85
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 0.99 0.80
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52 Income taxes

A A rec ised in the of Profit and Loss

Income tax expense
Current tax
Deferrad tax expense
Change in recagnised temporary differences

B. A t ised in Other C hensive Income

i

Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
R of aquity i
Remeasurements of defined benefit cbligations

€. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate

Tax effect of:

Finance costs on fair valuation of Financial Assets/Liability
Finance income on fair valuation of Financial Assets/Uability
Expenditures disallowed under the Incoma Tax Act

Other adjustments

D. M i dat i tax Bal

Deferred tax assets

Trade receivables

Provisions for employee benefits
Leases

Losses and unabsorbed depreciation
Others

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment
Borrowings

Sub- Total (b)

Defarred tax liabilities (net) (b} - (a)

Maovement in deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets

Security deposits

Trade receivables

Provisions for employee benefits
Contract liability as per Ind AS 115
Leases

Others

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment

Bormowmngs
Sub- Total (b}

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (b) - {a}

For the Period ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
. 49277
1250.30) T
(25030, s

For the period ended March 31,2025

Before Tax (expensel/ Nat
fax income iilx
[21.41) 5,39 (16.02}
(21.47) 5.39 {16.02)
For the period ended Far the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Rate Amount Rate Amount
25.17% 1.213.34) 25.17% 218337
(305.37) 549.51
68,75 16.61
(74.98) {1697
2845 365
3285 1068
(250.30) 563.48
As at Recognised Recognised As at
March 31, 2024 in P&L in OC1 March 31,2025
45.70 032 S 46.02
1138 481 539 2158
009 (10.04) - 0.05
- 30935 - 309.35
9.33 62407 - 633.39
66.50 938.51 5.39 -1,010.38
329.46 3760 E 367.07
19.22 655.99 - 675.21
348,63 693,59 1,042.28
282.19 (244.57) {5.39) 31.89
As at Recognised Recognised As at
March 31, 2023 in P&L in OCI March 31, 2024
55.19 [9.49) - 4570
6.27 515 - 1128
008 0.00 - 0.09
106.66 7316 - 179.82
168.21 68.82 - 236.99
268,81 60.65 = 329.46
110.85 78.87 = 189.72
379.66 139.52 - 51%.18
211.45 70.70 282.19
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53 Key Financial Ratios

o Ratioz Formulae For tha peciad emled % Change Reason for change
31-Mar-25
a) [Current ratio (in times) Current assets / 1.20 (4.76%) Less than 25%
Current liabilities
b) |Debt equity ratio {in times) | Debt / Shareholders' equity | 1.60 39.38% Refer Note Bii)
¢} |Debt service coverage ratio (in times} Earnings available for debt 0.17 (84.04%)
services / (Repayment of Refar Nate Biji)
borrowings + Interest)
d) |Return on Equity Ratio (%) ] Profit/{loss) after taxes / (9.82) (166.89%) Refer Note Blii
Total equity
2} |Return on Capital Employed Ratio {Pre tax) (%) | Earning before interest & tax / 0.02 (99.91%) Refer Note B{ii)
Capital employed
f) |Met profit ratio (%) l Met profit / Revenue (2.20) (182.78%), Refer Nota Biii
from opeartions
gl |Inventary Turnover Ratio (in times) I Cost of Goods Sold / 546 (27.65%) Refar Note B{iv)
Average Inventory
h) |Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times) I Credit sales / Average I 15.03 18.26% Less than 25%
trade receivables
i) |Trade payables turnover ratia (in times) Credit purchases / Average I 4,80 (16.04%) Less than 25%
trade payables
j) |MNet capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations / 19.80 14.41% Less than 25%
Averagu warkirig capital
Return on Investment Ratio is not applicable to the Company Refer Note 8
(B). Reasons for significant changes (25% or more)
(i} Increase in Unsecured Lang Term Borrowings

(ii} Decrease is due to loss incurred in the Quarter
(iii} Decrease in Earnings before interest and tax
{iv) Decrease in Credit Purchases

(v) Decrease in Credit Sales

(B). Formulas

(i) Current Assets=Total Current Assets

(i) Current Liabilities=Tatal Currant Libilities-Current Maturities of Long Term Debt

(iii) Debt=Long Term & Short Term Borrowings

livd Shareholders's Fund=Total Equity

(w) Earnings available for dabt services=Earnings befare Interest Tax and Depreciation & Amortization

(vi) Rep t of Borrowings+ urrent Maturity of Long term Debt +Finance Cost on Borrowings

(vii} Profit/{loss) after taxes=Profit after Tax

(viii) Total equity=Total Closing Equity

(ix) Capital Employed=Total Assets-Current Liabilities

{x) Earning before interest & tax=Profit before Tax+Finance Cost

(xi) Net Profit=Net Profit after Taxes

{xii) Revenue from Operati Total R from Operations

(xiii) Cost of Goods Seld=Cost of materials consumed-+Changes in inventaries of finished goods and work-in-progress
(xiv) Average Inventory=(Opening Invertory+ Closing Inventory)/2

(aw) Credit Sales=Total Sales

(xwi) Average Trade receivables=(Opening Trade Receivables+Closing Trade Receivables)/2

(xvii) Credit purchases=Purchase of Materials
(xviii] Average Trade Payables=(Opening Trade Payables+Closing Trade Payables)/2

(xix) Revenue from Operations=Total Revenue from Operations

{xx) Average working capital={Opening Working Capital+Closing Warking Capital)/2

(i) Working Capital=Current Assets-Current Liabilities
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The Parliament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund, Employse State Insurance and Gratuity. The|
effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. The Company will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in
the financial statements in the period in which the Codes become effective and the related rules are published.

The Campany does not have any transactions with companies struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Campany does not have any immavable property (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in the favouur of the lessee) whose
title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the finaneial year.

The Company have net advanced or loaned ar invested funds to any ather persanis) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Intermediaties) with the understanding that the Intermediary|
shall

{a} directly or indiractly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or an behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficianies) or
(b} pravide any guarantes, security or the like to o on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recarded in writing or atherwise) that
the Campany shall

(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any quarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Regtrar of Companies ("ROC") beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not done any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments|
under the Income Tax Act, 1967 (such as, search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incomea Tax Act, 1961),

Disclosure for struck off companies
The following table depicts the details of balances cutstanding in respect of transactions undertaken with a company struck-off
under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(Ein lacs)
Name of struck off Company Mature of transactions  Balance as at March 31,2025  Balance as at March 31, 2024  Relationship with the|
with struck-off Company struck-off Company
Trivista Steel and Power Pt Lud Purchase of goods 49.26 N Advanee to Vendor|
The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender in accord: with the guidelines on wilful defauiters issued by the Reserve Bank
of India.

Thaese financial statemants were approved for issue by

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICH) FRN: 302049E

Place: Bengalury Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place; Bengaluru
Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025 Date: 01/08/2025
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VANYA STEELS
PRIVATE LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT

To,

Dear Shareholders,

Registered Office: A One House No326,
Back Portion, First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL
Layout, Sahakar Nagar

Bengaluru -560092 Karnataka, India
Phone: 080- 4564 6001

Email: info@aonesteelgroup.com

Web: www.aonesteelgroup.com

CIN: U74999KA2005PTCI125578

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 20" Annual Report on working of vour

Company together with audited statement of Accounts of the company for the year ended

31t March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLICHTS/STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

Financial performance of your Company on a standalone basis for the financial year 2024-25

is summarized below:

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars From 01% April, 2024 to | From 01t April, 2023

31t March, 2025 _to 31 March, 2024 |
Income
Net Revenue from operations 44,732.07 60,882.37
Other Income - i - 38932 | 88.61
Total Revenue 45,121.39 60,970.98
Total Expenditure 46,334.73 58,787.61
Profit/(Loss) before tax (1213.34) 2,183.37
Tax Expenses& Deferred Tax (228.06) 563.48
Profit / (Loss) after tax (985.27) 1,619.89
Add : Other Comprehensive Income (16.02) 0.12
Total Comprehensive Income for the (1001.29) 1620.01
year
Eamnings Per Share (Basic) (6.22) 10.37

During the year under review, your Company has registered revenue from operations of Rs.

44,732.07 Lakhs as compared to previous year revenue of Rs. 60,882.37 Lakhs. Your Company

has recorded Loss for the of Rs. 1213.34 Lakhs as compared to the previous year profit before
tax of Rs. 2183.37 Lakhs and registered Loss after tax during the year of Rs. 985.27 Lakhs.

Your Directors expect that the performance of the Company during the current financial year

would improve as estimated.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

Factory : Sy No 58, 58/2, 59, 60, 571, 57/2, 57/3, 57/4, 57/6, 61/3, 621, 62/2, Kasanakandi Road, Hirebagnal, Koppal - 583228 Karnataka, India




There is no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company during the financial
year 2024-25,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION BETWEEN END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position between end

of financial year and date of report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no such orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future.

The holding company A-One Steels India Limited is converted from Private Limited to Public
Limited w.e.f. 23.12.2024. hence, being a subsidiary of the Holding Public Limited, company
is deemed public company from 23.12.2024 and complied all the necessary provisions under
companies Act 2013 and all other applicable provisions to the extent possible.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION EACH OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies.

Hence the disclosure is not required to be made.

DIVIDEND: _

The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend to equity shareholders for the
year ending 31% March, 2025. However, as per terms of issue of preference shares, the Board
of Directors, in their meeting held on 227 March, 2025 declared the interim dividend for F.Y
2023-24 to Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares at the rate of 0.01% on Face value
of Rs. 10/- aggregating to Rs. 6990/~ to those preference shareholders whose name appears in
the Register of Preference shareholders as on 31.03.2024.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company retained loss of Rs. 985.27 Lakhs in the retained earnings. The amount equal to

face value of redemption of preference shares i.e. Rs. 55 lacs have been transferred to Capi tal

Redemption Reserve from General Reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL:




The Board provides following disclosure pertaining to Companies (Share Capital and

Debentures) Rule, 2014:

SL No. | Particulars Disclosure
1. Issue of Equity shares with differential rights Nil
2 Issue of Sweat Equity shares Nil
3. Issue of employee stock option B Nil
4 Provision of money by company for purchase of its own
shares by trustees for the benefit of employees Nil
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
Type No of shares Amount (in Lakhs.)
Equity 1,65,00,000 1650.00
Non-Cumulative 2,35,00,000 2350.00
Redeemable Preference
Shares
Total 4,00,00,000 4000.00
PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
Type No of shares Amount (in Lakhs.)
Equity 1,58,41,366 1584.14
Non-Cumulative 64,40,000 644.00
Redeemable Preference
Shares
Total 2,22 81,366 2228.1366

* On June 29, 2024, company partially redeemed 300,000, 0.01% Non-cumulative

redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10/- each and 6% redemption premium on face
value aggregating to Rs. 31,80,000/- of M/s. Fidus Finance Private Limited.

e on July 1, 2024 company partially redeemed 250,000 0.01% Non-cumulative

redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10/- each and 6% redemption premium on face

value aggregating to Rs. 26,50,000/- of M/s. Fidus Finance Private Limited."

10. DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

11. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
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As per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company shall place a copy of the
annual return on the website of the company, if any and the web-link of such annual return
shall be disclosed in the Board's report. Since the Company does not have its website, the
web-link is not given. The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 is annexed herewith

as “Annexure-1".

. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they meet the criteria
prescribed for independence under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and continue to comply with the Code of Conduct
laid down under Schedule IV of the Act.

The Board has assessed the veracity of the confirmations submitted by the Independent
Directors and thereafter has taken the same on record. There has been no change in the
circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the company. In the opinion
of the Board, the Independent Directors are competent, experienced, proficient and possess
necessary expertise and integrity to discharge their duties and functions as Independent
Directors. The names of all Independent Directors are included in the data bank of
Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors are independent of the

management.

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with
the interests of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the
Audit Committee for approval of Independent Directors of the Company and the Board for
approval, if required. The Company has taken necessary approvals as and when required as
per the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, as the case may be. The details of the
transactions entered into, at arms length basis and in the ordinary.course of business, with the
Related Parties are stated in the notes to accounts, and also in Form AOC-2 as prescribed

under the Companies Act, 2013 which is annexed herewith “ Annexure-I1".

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):
In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors
have constituted as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and adopted a CSR
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policy. The Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2024-25 as required under
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been appended as
“ Annexure-1I1" and forms integral part of this Report.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, evaluation
of performance of every Director, Board and the Chairman was carried out by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Chairman of the respective committees
reviewed the performance of the respective committees. The performance evaluation of Non-
Independent Directors and Board as a whole, Committees thereof and Chairman of the
Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors through a separate meeting of
the Independent Directors. Evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire
Board of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. The evaluation was carried out on
the basis of response of the Directors to a structured questionnaire covering various aspects of
Board performance such as Board composition and expertise, Board oversight, strategy and
direction, Corporate Governance and Board administration and inputs shared by the
Directors at the meeting.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) The efforts made towards technology
absorption;

SL PARTICULARS DISCLOSURE

No.

(A) | Conservation of Energy: The Energy conservation continues to
(i) The steps taken or impact on | receive priority attention at all levels. All
conservation of energy efforts are made to conserve and

optimize use of energy with continuous
(ii) The steps taken by the company for | monitoring, improvement in
utilizing alternate sources of energy maintenance through improved
operational techniques.
(iii) The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments
(B) Technology Absorption: Updation of Technology is a Continuous

process; efforts are continuously made
to develop new products required in the
Company’s activities.

NA
(ii) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.
(iii) In case of imported technology

Nil

(imported during the last three years




reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year).

(iv) The expenditure incurred on
Research and Development.

Nil

17. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024
Foreign Exchange Earning 1599.04 5069.561
Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil Nil
18. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board comprises following Directors:
SL Name of the Director Designation
No.
01. Sandeep Kumar Director
02. Sunil Jallan Director
03. Sukanya Acharya Independent Director
04 Kamaldeep Singh Independent Director
Following are the changes in composition of Board of Directors during the financial year:
Name of the Designation Date of event Nature of change
Director
Kamaldeep Singh | Additional Director | December 23, 2024 Appointment
Sukanya Acharya | Additional Director | January 16, 2025 Appointment
Kamaldeep Singh | Independent director | March 31, 2025 Change in Designation
Sukanya Acharya Independent director | March 31, 2025 Change in Designation
Sunil Jallan Non-Executive January 16, 2025 Change in Designation
Director




Mr. Sandeep Kumar the director liable to be retiring by rotation and being eligible offers

himself for the re-appointment.

Details regarding the appointment of director as the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2"), issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government are provided as part of notice

to the AGM.
Key Managerial Personnel:

Key Managerial Personnel Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,

2013, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company are:

SL No. | Name of the KMP Position held in the company
01 *Pardeep Garg Chief Financial Officer
02 Pooja Sara Nagaraja Company Secretary

Mr. Pardeep Garg appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 13.11.2024.
Committees and their Constitution:

As required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had formed/re-constituted following

Committees

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Risk Management Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
POSH Committee

N N

19. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS:

Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:

Sl No Name of the Director Remuneration
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During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to following Non-executive directors

Si Name of the Director Sitting Fees (Amount
No in Lakhs)

01 Sukanya Acharya Rs. 0.60

02 Kamaldeep Singh Rs. 0.80

COMPANY’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is to ensure that the remuneration
is in line with best comparable market practices, as well as competitive vis-a-vis that of
comparable companies both in India and other international markets, which will have a
motivating effect to act as a driving force to ensure long term availability of talent and also
retention of the best talents. A brief description about the Company’s Nomination and
Remuneration Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other related
matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Company places utmost importance on its fiduciary role as a guardian of stakeholders’
interest and strives to achieve a mutually aligned objective of value and wealth creation for
all interested parties. The Board and the M;'magement humbly acknowledges this role and
continues to propagate this belief through all layers of the organization to create an
environment of accountability and trust. These responsibilities continue to be the focus of its
attention through the tumultuous ride along the path of expansion, ensuring the highest
standards of ethics and integrity in all its business dealings while avoiding potential conflicts
of interest. The result of this is a corporate structure which serves its ever expanding business

needs while maintaining transparency and adherence to the above stated beliefs.

. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

During the Financial year 2024-25, there were 11 Board Meetings held on following dates:

Sl Date of Total Number of Attendance
No meeting directors associated as
on the date of meeting

Number of directors % of attendance
Attended
20.05.2024 2 2 100
29.06.2024 2 2 100
01.07.2024 2 2 100




4 | 20.07.2024 2 2 100

5 | 28.08.2024 2 2 100

6 | 04.09.2024 2 2 100

7 | 13.11.2024 2 2 100

8 | 13.11.2024 2 2 100

9| 23.12.2024 2 2 100

10 | 16.01.2025 3 3 100
11 | 22.03.2025 4 4 100
During the financial year following Committees meeting held on the following dates:
Type of | Date of [ Total Number of | Attendance
committee meeting members associated as
on the date of meeting | Number of members | % of
Attended attendance

Audit 22/03/2025 | 03 03 100
Committee
Nomination and | 22/03/2025 | 03 03 100
Remuneration
Committee
POSH 13/01/2025 | 4 04 100
Committee
Risk 31/03/2025 | 03 02 66.67
Management
Committee
CSR Committee | 31/03/2025 | 03 03 100

24,

. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has not given loans, guarantees under Section 186 of the companies Act, 2013

during the year under review. However, the Company has made investments in the below

company:
SI No | Name of the Company Nature of | Number of | Investment
Transactions shares be | Amount (in
allotted Lakhs)
01 Atria Wind Power | Investment *65,322 Rs. 144.68 Lakhs
(Bijapur 1) Private
Limited

Company has received 45000 Equity Shares of Rs. 221.48/- aggregating of Rs. 99,66,600/- of
Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited from A-One Steels India Limited on 08.03.2025
and the current investment increased from Rs. 45.01 Lakhs to Rs. 144.68 Lakhs.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:
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(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to the material departures;

(D) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under review.

(C) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting.records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

() The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively. The Company has complied all the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has been addressing “various risks impacting the Company. In today’s
challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in
accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative.

The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology
obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. It also includes

exchange risk as the transactions takes place among foreign countries.

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk.
As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate
the same. The company has also constituted Risk Management Committee.

. HUMAN RESOURCES:

The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted
training at periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously

followed the principle of rewarding performance.
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29.

30.

31,

REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company is covered under the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
The remuneration policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration
according to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization.
The employees who are engaged in clerical, administrative and professional services are

suitably remunerated according to the industry norms.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for directors and employees in confirmation with Section 177 (9) of the companies act 2013
read with Rule 7(1)(b) of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 to

report concerns about unethical behavior.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the

requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

During the year 2024-25, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual
harassment.

The details of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given
below:-

Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual
Harassment Cases | Harassment cases | Harassment cases | Harassment cases
pending in the | received during the | disposed off during | pending at the end
beginning of the | Financial year 2024- | the Financial year | of Financial year

Financial Year | 25 2024-25 2024-25
i.e.01.04.2024
0 0 0 0

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has laid down a system of internal financial controls with reference to its
financial statements. The integrity and reliability of the internal control systems are achieved
through clear policies and procedures, process automation, training and development of

employees, and an organisation structure that segregates responsibilities. These controls are
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reviewed and tested by the internal audit team to ensure the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records and the preparation of reliable financial statements.

The internal financial controls of the Company with respect to the financial statements are
adequate and are operating effectively.

All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The

Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining
books of accounts and reporting financial statements.

DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS PER SECTION 148(1):

The Company is maintaining the books of accounts and other related records as per rules
prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

During the year under review, the Company had no employees who earned remuneration
beyond the limits specified under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of top 10

employees of the Company is detailed as under:

SI| Name of | Design | Relat | qualific | the Nature | Date of | the Remune
N| the ation ion ations age of | of Employ | perce | ration
o | Employe with | and such | Employ | ment ntage | (Per
e any | experie | empl | ment of Month)
direc | nce of | oyee; equity | (Amoun
tor of | the shares | tin Rs.)
the employ held
comp | ee; by the
any emplo
yee in
the
compa
ny
0 | Redla Genera | NA Qualific | 42 Full 01/12/ |- Rs.
1 | Krishma |1 ation- years | Time 2024 1,20,000
Kishore | Manag B.Sc Employ /-
er Chemist ment
ry.
Experie
nce-
22years
0 | Gajula Manag | NA Qualific | 42 Full 17/12/ | - Rs.




2 | Madhu er- ation years | Time | 2024 1,08,000
Babu Electric Diploma Employ /-
al in E &E- ment
Experie
nce-
20Years
0 | Nisar DGM NA Qualific | 40 Full 21/08/ Rs.
3 | Ahmad ation - | years | Time 2023 1,00,000
Diploma Employ 1=
in E &C- ment
Experie
nce-
17Years -
0T HOD NA | Qualific | 45 Full 01/02/ Rs.
4 | Madhava ation - | years | Time 2025 1,00,000
Reddy Diploma Employ /-
in ment
Mech-
Experie
nce-
20Years
0 | Matcha Manag | NA | Qualific | 50 Full 01/05/ Rs.
5 | Ramu er ation - | years | Time 2025 90,000/ -
Diploma Employ
in Met- ment
Experie
nce-
25Years
0 | Pardeep | CFO NA | Qualific | 52 Full 01/04/ Rs.
6 | Garg ation years | Time 2020 80,000/ -
CA Employ
Experie ment
nce-
20Years
0 | Anand Plant NA Qualific | 53 Full 01/02/ Rs.
7 | Sharaff In- ation years | Time 2023 75,000/ -
charge B.Com- Employ
Experie ment
nce-
30Years
0 | Saumya | Manag | NA Qualific | 52 Full 01/02/ Rs.
8 | Sharaff er ation years | Time 2023 75,000/-
B.Sc Employ
Experie ment
nce-
25Years
0 | Surangi | HOD NA | Qualific | 38 Full 01/05/ Rs.
9 | Satyanar ation years | Time 2023 70,000/-
ayaraju B.Sc Employ
Chemist ment
v

Experie
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nce-18
years
1 | Raja Manag | NA | Qualific | 45 Full 01/07/ |- Rs.
0 | Suresh er ation years | Time 2020 69,500/ -
Babu B.Tech- Employ
Experie ment
nce-
20Years

. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER

THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2013 as on 31st March, 2025.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
THE REASONS THEREOF:

As on 31.st March 2025, the Company did not enter into transaction for One Time Settlement

of loan/borrowings from Bank and obtaining valuation report on the same.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), as per the requirements of the IEPF Rules.

. COMPLIANCE TO THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFITS

ACT, 1961:
The company has complied with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

. DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT:

Holding company of the company is in the process of [PO and being subsidiary of Holding
public company, The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for all its Senior
Management Personnel and Directors and the same is affirmed by all the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel as required under Regulation 34 read with Part D of Schedule
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A
declaration signed by Mr. Sandeep Kumar, Director of the Company affirming the
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 has been
annexed as part of this Report.




39. AUDITORS:
i) STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Singhi & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 302049E), were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 18" Annual General Meeting held on 29* September 2023
as Statutory Auditors for the period of 5 years and to hold office until the conclusion of the
23 Annual General Meeting.

AUDITOR’S REPORT: The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year

ended 315 March 2025 and hence, do not call for any comments from the management
under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Auditors of the Company have
not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Act.

Following are reported in the Standalone Auditor’s Report:

1.

Point No 2 (iv)(j) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, we found that the
audit trail at the database level is editable.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the entire period from April 1, 2023 except that
the audit trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and
at the application level only from October 2023.

Management Reply: audit trail at the database level is editable because initially
software was in the implementation stage. Hence, for short period it was editable. As
on the date audit trial is in uneditable version.

The marginal delay was due to the reason that as this is being the first year of
implementation due to which the integration and upgradation of the new software
for audit trail with the existing accounting software takes some time for proper
implementation. The same is now properly implemented and integrated. Hence,
maintenance of Audit Trail remains duly compiled and implemented by all

operational units as on date.

In Point no ii (b)of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report :




The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the company. The discrepancies, if any, between the
books of accounts and the quarterly return/statements filed with such bank and
financial institutions have been disclosed below :

Quarter Aggregate | Amount Amount as | Amount as | Amount of | Reasons
working utilized per books | reported difference | for
capital during the | of account | in the material
limits quarter quarterly discrepanc
sanctioned return/ ies

statement

March 8,100.00 7974.72 11,447.00 | 11,930.82 (483.82) Refer

2025 Notes

December | 8,100.00 7,834.39 12,812.54 12,868.92 (56.38) Refer

2024 Notes

September | 8,100.00 7,856.33 13,736.36 13,954.28 (217.92) Refer

2024 Notes

June 8,100.00 7,990.08 14,751.01 14,735.20 15.81 Refer

2024 Notes

Management Representation:

i. The differences are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared based on

provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.

ii. While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances

available as on respective quarters and net debtors submitted to bank after excluding

more than 90 days.

The Company has a practice of submitting net position of debtors, advances to

suppliers, inventory and deducting creditors, advance from customers, Unsecured Bills
Discounted with RXIL. Therefore for comparing with the books of accounts the same

practice has been followed to arrive at the net position though there is a change in

classification in the financial statements.

3. In Point no vii (bjof the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report :

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

company examined by us, the statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) which have

not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of dispute are as

follows :
Name of | Nature of | Amount | Period to | Forum Amount Management Reply
the Statute | the dues (Rs.in which where Deposited
Lakhs) amount dispute  is
relates pending

The Income 24.79 FY18-19 Commissi Nil An appeal has been

Income- tax oner of filed with

Tax Act, Assessm Income Commissioner of

1961 ent Tax Income  Tax on
14.05.2022 and same is
pending.




The Income 1.80 FY19-20 Centralized | Nil As current demand
Income- tax Processing belongs to mnormal
Tax  Act, | Assessme Centre rectification done by
1961 nt (Income Tax) Income Tax
department on the
return files in past
year. We will contest
the same against
appropriate authority
The Income 2.36 Fy22-23 Centralized | Nil As current demand
Income- tax Processing belongs to normal
Tax  Act, | Assessme Centre rectification done by
1961 nt (Income Tax) Income Tax
department on the
return files in past
year. We will contest
the same against
appropriate authori
Goods and | Appeal 844.45 FY17-18 Deputy 1.58 An appeal has been
Services Commission filed against the said
Tax  Act, er Order  before the
2017 Appellate  Authority
and the same is under
adjudication,
Goods and | Appeal 33.28 FY18-19 Deputy 37.98 An appeal has been
Services Commission filed against the said
Tax  Act, er Order before the
2017 Appellate  Authority
and the same is under
adjudication.
Goods and | Appeal 90.53 FY19-20 Deputy 459 An appeal has been
Services Commission filed against the said
Tax  Act, er Order before the
2017 Appellate  Authority
and the same is under
adjudication.
Goods and | Appeal 4.63 FY23-24 Joint 4.62 An appeal has been
Services Commission filed against the said
Tax  Act, er Order before the
2017 Appellate  Authority

and the same is under
adjudication.

4. In Point no xvii of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report :Based on

information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the company has

incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 641.03 Lakhs during the financial year and there are

no cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year

Management Reply: Increase in cost of materials and other expenses like electricity
charges and labour cost, there is a cash losses during financial years. Company is taking

necessary action for the same.

ii) INTERNAL AUDITOR:




Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 M/s. Vishnu Daya & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:
008456N /5200092) were appointed as Internal Auditor of the company.

Further, Internal Auditor have not made any qualification in their report.

iii) COST AUDITOR:
The Board has approved the appointment of M/s. Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost
Accountants (FRN: 100509) as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year
2025-26 at a remuneration Rs. 80,000 plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses
payable to the Cost Auditors in connection with the Cost Audit.
The Board of Directors of the company proposes the ratification of remuneration of M/s.
Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 100509) for the Financial Year 2025-26 at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting,.
COST AUDIT REPORT: The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year
ended 31st March 2025.

iv) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
has appointed CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership
No. F12205 and COP No. 18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the company for F.Y 2024-25
and received the report from them.

The Board proposed to appoint CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in
Practice (Membership No. F12205 and COP No. 18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the
company for next Financial Year F.Y 2025-26.

The Report of the secretarial audit as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 is annexed as Annexure-IV.
The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 315 March 2025.

40. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION
143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

Not applicable.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your Directors take this opportunity to thank its Bankers for their support in the growth of

the Company. Your Directors wish to acknowledge with gratitude the patronage extended to
the Company by the large body of its customers and contribution made by the employees at
all levels and look forward to their dedicated commitment in the years to come towards the

Company reaching greater heights.

Finally, Directors would like to convey their deep sense of gratitude to the members and look
forward to their continued support in the growth of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board
EOR VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITE]

DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630

Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, Outer Ring Road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore



Declaration on Code of Conduct

To,

The Company Secretary

VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED

A One House No.326, Back Portion,

First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout,

Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092

Dear Sir/ Madam,

I, Mr. Sandeep Kumar Managing Director hereby confirm that for the year under review i.e.
2024-25, all the directors and members of the senior management of the Company, have
affirmed compliance with the said codes, as applicable to them,

Signature:

Name: Sand
Designation: Director
Place: Bangalore
Date: 01.08.2025



Annexure-|

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025

[Pursuant fo Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. |CIN U74999KA2005PTC 125578

2. | Registration Date 20/06/2005

3. | Name of the VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Company

4. | Category/Sub- Company Limited by shares/Indian  Non-
category of the Government Company
Company

5. | Address of the A One House No.326, Back Portion, First Floor Ward
Registered office No. 08, CQAL Layout, Sahakar Nagar Bengaluru -

560092

5(i) | Contact No. 080-45644000

5(ii) | E-mail ID legal@aonesteelgroup.com

6. | Whether listed No
company

7. | Name, Address & BgSE Financials Limited (NSDL:IN200875,CDSL-234),
contact details of No.51, "Stock Exchange Towers",
the Registrar & 1st Cross, J.C.Road,
Transfer Agent, if Bangalore - 560 027.
any. Phone: 080 - 41329661/66673353

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated)

Sl Name and Description of NIC Code of % to total turnover of the
No. Main products / services the company
Product/service
01 Manufacture of iron and 2410 100%
steel




lll.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

Private Limited)

SLN| NAME AND CIN/GLN | Holding/ | % of Applica
o. | ADDRESS OF THE Subsidiar | shares ble
COMPANY y/ held Section
Associat J
01 | A-One Steels India |[U28999KA2012PLC063439 | Holding 25.70% Section |
Limited (Formerly 2(46)
known as A-One
Steels India Private
Limited and A-One
Steel and  Alloys

V.

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning

of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the %

year

Chan

Dem [Physical | Total
at

% of
Total
Shar
es

Dem
at

Physical | Total

% of ge
Total | durin

Shar 9
es the
year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

Q)
Individual/
HUF

01

0.01

01

01

0.01% -

b) Central
Govt

c) State
Govi(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

- 1,51,60,1
66

1,51,60,166

5.7
0%

1,51,
60,1
66

1,51,60.16
6

95.70 -
%

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any other

Sub- Total
(A) (1):-

1,51,60,1
67

1,51,60,167

95.7
0%

1,51,
60,1
67

1,51,60,1
&7

95.70 -
%o

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs-
Individuals

b} Other
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks/ Fl

e) Any other

Sub- Total




Total
sharehoiding
of Promoters
(A)= (A)(1)+
(A)(2)

1,51,60,1
67

1,51,60,1

6
7

95.7

1,51,
60,1
67

1,51,60,1
67

95.70

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / Fl

c) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

6,81,199

6,81,199

681,199

6,81,199

4.30
%

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1
lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Sub- Total
(B)(2):-




Total Public E 6,81,199 6,81,199 | 4.30 - 6,81,199 | 6,81,199 | 4.30 -
Shareholding o o
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares - - - - - - - - -
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
- 1,58,41,3 | 1,58,41,36 | 100 | 1,51, | 6,81,199 | 1,58,41,3 | 100%
Grand Total 66 6| % 60,1 66
(A+B+C) 67
ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:
Sl. | Shareholder’ Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the | % change
No. s Name beginning of the year year in
No. of % of f No. of % of | %of shareholdi
Shares | total Shares Shares total | Shares ng during
Share Pledged / Shares | Pledged / | the year
s of ncumbe of the | encumber
the redto compa | ed to total
comp total ny shares
any shares
01. [ Sandeep 01| 001% Nil 01 0.01% Nil Nil
Kumar
02. | A-One Steels | 1,51,60, | 95.70 Nil | 1,51,60,16 | 95.70% Nil Nil
India Limited 166 % 6
(Formerly
known asA-
One Steels
India Private
Limited and
A-One Steel
and Alloys
Private
Limited)
Total 1,51,60, | 100% -1 1,51,60,1 | 95.70% Nil Nil
167 67
ili)Changes in Promoters’ Shareholding: NA
Sl. | Sharehold | Shareholding at the | Data wise Increase / Decrease in Cumulative
No. | er's Name | beginning of the year Promoters Share Shareholding
holding during the Year during the year

specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease

No. of % of total

Shares Shares of
the

company

Reason
for
Increase/
Decrease

Date

No. of No. of % of total

Shares Shares Shares of
the

company

iv)Shareholding Pattern of fop ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):NOT APPLICABLE.




Sl Shareholding ot the | Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning during the year
of the year
For Each of the Top 10Shareholders No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year - - = =
Date wise Increase / Decrease in - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year (or on the date - - - -
of separation, if separated during the
year)
v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NA
SI. | Shareholding of each Shareholding at the Cumulative
No. | Directors and each Key beginning Shareholding during
Managerial Personnel of the year theyear
No. of shares | % of total No. of % of total
01 Sandeep Kumar shares of the | shares shares of
company the
company
At the beginning of the year 01 0.01% 01 0.01%
Date wise Increase / - - - =
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer [/ bonus/ sweat
equity etc.)-
At the end of the year 01 0.01% 01 0.01%

V) INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment: (Amount in Lakhs)

Secured
Loans Unsecured Deposils Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of - -
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 11586.85 762.58 - 12349.43
i) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 11586.85 762.58 12349.43
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
« Addition 3886.62 - 3886.62
» Reduction 509.84 - 509.84
Net Change 509.84 3886.62 -




Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount 11077.01 4649 .2 - 15726.21

i) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 11077.01 46492 15726.21

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: NIL

A.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS, AND /OR

MANAGER:

Sl Particulars of Name of Director/MD/WTD/Manager
No. Remuneration

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s |

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under Section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961

2]

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

W

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, (Sifting Fees)

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: NIL

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission - - - - -
Others, - - -
Total (2) - =
Total (B)=(1+2) - - -

Total Managerial
Remuneration




| Overall Ceiling as per the Act | s 2 | - | - | -

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD: Amount
in Lakhs

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEO | Company | CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary - 2.88 3.65 -

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - = = =
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 B

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax - - . -
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option 2 S = =
3 Sweat Equity ~ = = -
4 Commission - = S =

- as % of profit . - - L

others, specify... _ = = =

5 Others, please specify = = = B

Total — = . .

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | made,
Companies Punishment/ COURT] if any
Act Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty = = - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - ~ = - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
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On Behalf of the Board

DIN: 02150846
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces
Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore

FOR VANYA STEELS pawnm
<) 2
¥ &

DIN: 02112630
Address: Tower-3-398, 39th Floor
SNN Clermont, Outer Ring Road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045
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FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactionsmunder fourth proviso thereto

Name of the Company:

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. : NA

*Number of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:0

ozZ™wn
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identity
number
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(FCRN) or
Limited
Liability
Partnershi
p

number
(LLPIN)
or Foreign
Limited
Liability
Partnershi
P

number
(FLLPIN)
or
Permanen
t Account
Number
(PAN)/Pas
sport for
individua
Is or any
other
registratio
n

number

Name (s)
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Just
ifica
tion
for

ente
ring
into
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(DD/
MM/
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Annexure-ll

1. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
Number of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 05
Sl Corporate | Name (s) of | Nature of Nature of Durati Salient terms of | Date | Amou
No | identity the related | relationship | contracts/arr | on  of | the contractsor | of nf
number party angements/tr | .. arrangements or | appr | paid
(CIN) or ansaction P transaction oval | as
foreign including the by advan
company to/arran value, if any the ces, if
registratio gement Boar | any
n number s/transa d
(FCRN) or ction
Limited
Liability
Partnershi
P
number
(LLPIN)
or Foreign
Limited
Liability
Partnershi
P
number
(FLLPIN)
or
Permanen
t Account
Number
(PAN)/Pas
sport for
individua
Is or any
other
registratio
n number
01 | U28999K | A-One Holding Purchase On As mutually 25.03. | Nil
A2012PLC | Steels India | company Mr. | Goods need agreed 2024
063439 Limited Sunil Jallan basis and
(Formerly and Mr. Sale of Goods | On As mutually 22.03.
known As | Sandeep need agreed 2025
A-One Kumar and basis
Spm“,’elsml“"’“ B deeo | Purchaseof | On As mutually
o : P | CWIP/PPE |need | agreed
Limited Singh- T
And A-One !)lrector I On As mutually
itﬁz‘y’:“d interested | Gervices Need | agreed
Private e
Limited)




Annexure-Il

Handling On As mutually
and Loading | need agreed
and Basis
Unloading
Charges
Purchaseof | On As mutually
investments | need agreed
basis
02 | U27200K | A-one Gold | Mr. Sunil Purchaseof | On As mutually 25.03. | Nil
A2020 Pipes and Jallan and Goods need agreed 2024
PTC13987 | Tubes Mr. Sandeep basis and
0 Private Kumarand | Sale of goods | On As mutually 22.03.
Limited, Mr. need agreed 2025
Kamaldeep basis
Singh-
Director
interested
03 | AAGFL79 | Laksh Mr. Sunil Purchaseof | On As mutually 25.03. | Nil
05F Steels- Jallan and Coods need agreed 2024
Partnership | Mr. Sandeep basis and
Kumar are Sale of goods | On As mutually 22.03. | Nil
son(s) of Mr. need agreed 2025
Krishan basis
Kumar Jalan
who is
partner Purchaseof | On As mutually
CWIP/PPE need agreed
basis
04 | 202134892 | A One Gold | Mr. Sunil Sale of goods | On As mutually 25.03. | Nil
E Singapore Jallan- ‘ need agreed 2024
Pte Ltd Director basis and
22.03.
2025
05 | CNKPR4 | Bellary Ms. Asha Sale of Goods | On As mutually 25.03. | Nil
847R Tubes Rani- need agreed 2024
Corporation | proprietor basis
who is wife | Purchaseof | On As mutually
of M. Goods need agreed
2 basis
Manoj
Kumar
Director of
the holding Handling On As mutually
company c‘har_ges and nee_d agreed
(Resigned liquidated basis
damages

on
23.12.2024)




Annexure-Il

On Behalf of the Board
FOR VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED

DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630

Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, Outer Ring Road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024  Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore




_ Annexure-III
CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

. A brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company:
The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Policy ('CSR Policy') is framed as per the

requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). As per the policy, the company’s
aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its focus on education & skill development,
eradicating hunger, health & wellness and environmental sustainability. Also embedded in this
objective is support to the marginalized cross section of the society by providing opportunities to
improve their quality of life.

The projects undertaken during the financial year 2024-25 are within the broad frame work of
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of CSR Committee:

The CSR committee consisting of following members:

SLNo. Name Designation Number of Number of
meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee
during the year attended during
the year
01. Mr. Sunil Jallan Chairman 01 01
02. Mr. Sandeep Kumar Member 01 01
03. Mr. Kamal Deep Singh Member 01 01

. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
Board are disclosed on the website of the company: NA
. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable.

(Amount in Lakhs)

a. | Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 2339.83 Lakhs

b. | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per | Rs. 46.80 Lakhs
section 135(5):

¢. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | Nil

activities of the previous financial years




6.

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Rs. 13.96

Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] Rs. 32.84 Lakhs

a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).:Rs.
34.04 Lakhs

b. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): Rs. 34.04 Lakhs
e. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Lakhs.)
S“pent f_“f the ) Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year (in Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso tosection
Lakhs.) Section 135(6). 135(5).
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
Rs. 34.04 Lakhs NIL N.A NA Nil NA
TOTAL -
f. Excess amount for set off, if any:
SL.No. Particular Amount (in Lakhs)
) 2 @)
(i) Two percent on average net profit of the company as per | Rs. 46.80 Lakhs. (Rs.
section135(5) 13.96 Lakhs was set-
off from the excess
spend for the
previous year).
Hence, total CSR
obligation will be Rs.
32.84 Lakhs
(if) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 34.04 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 1.198 Lakhs
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities | 0

of the financial years, if any

)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] | Rs. 1.198 Lakhs




7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial

Years: NIL
2) @) (@) ) (6) @) ®)
Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Deficie
Financial transferred Amount Spent in transferred remaining to be ncy, if
Year(s) to in the toa spent in any
Unspent Unspent | Financial Fund as succeeding
CSR CSR Year (in specified Financial Years
Account Account Rs) under (in Rs)
under 135(6) | under Schedule VII
(in Rs.) 135(6) as per
second
proviso to
135(5),if any
Amount | Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
NOT APPLICABLE

8.

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or

acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).. ¥ES/NO; If Yes, enter the

number of Capital assets created/ acquired:

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not applicable

# Short Pincode of | Date of Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
particulars the creation | of CSR beneficiary of the registeredowner
of property amount
the property | orasset(s) spent
or
asset(s)

[including
complete
address and
location of
the
property]

(1) 2) G) @) ()] (6)

CSR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if

applicable




9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

On Behalf of the Board
FOR VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED

DIN: 021508

Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore

Director
DIN: 02112630
Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
SNN Clermont, Outer Ring Road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045



CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva #41/1, 11th Cross, 8th Main, 2nd Block

Company Secretary in Practice, Jayanagar, Bengaluru - 560 011

Insolvency Professional & Registered Valuer Email: subbaraocs@gmail.com

Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mobile: +91-8147238639
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31% March 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

A One House No.326, Back Portion,

First Floor Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout,
Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru- 560092, Karnataka

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Vanya Steels Private Limited (CIN:
U74999KA2005PTC125578) (hereinafter referred as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Vanya Steels Private Limited (the Company’s) books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2025, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to

the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Vanya Steels Private Limited for the financial year ended on 31* March 2025

according to the provisions of:

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25




CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva #41/1, 11th Cross, 8th Main, 2nd Block

Company Secretary in Practice, Jayanagar, Bengaluru - 560 011
Insolvency Professional & Registered Valuer Email: subbaraocs@gmail.com
Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mobile: +91-8147238639

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under (in so far as they

are made applicable);

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there

under; Not applicable as on 315 March 2025.

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to

the extent applicable;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there,

to the extent applicable;

(v) | further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with other Acts, Laws,

Policies and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company.

(vi)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; (Not Applicable)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable)

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25
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Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mobile: +91-8147238639

(vi)

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; (Not Applicable)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

1998; (Not Applicable)

All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The examination
and reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate

systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws.

| have also examined compliance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute

of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General

Meetings.

The Company has not entered into any Listing Agreements with Stock Exchange (s)

during the year.

I have not examined compliance by the Company relating to the applicable financial
laws, such as direct and indirect tax laws including cost records, since the same have

been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated




CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva #41/1, 11th Cross, 8th Main, 2nd Block

Company Secretary in Practice, Jayanagar, Bengaluru - 560 011
Insolvency Professional & Registered Valuer Email: subbaraocs@gmail.com
Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mobile: +91-8147238639

professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the

provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are

captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors during the Audit Period and the
change in the composition of Board of Directors during the period under review has

been carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25
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obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of

the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the company has following events /
actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

|. During the year under review, the Company redeemed 3,00,000 (Three Lakh)
0.01% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares held by Fidus Finance
Pvt. Ltd, of X10/- (Rupees Ten each), at a 6% redemption premium on the face
value, aggregating to X31,80,000/- (Rupees Thirty-One Lakh Eighty Thousand
only). The redemption was duly approved by the Board of Directors on 29" June

2024.

Il.  During the year under review, the Company further redeemed 2,50,000 (Two
Lakh Fifty Thousand) 0.01% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
held by Fidus Finance Pvt. Ltd, of X10/- (Rupees Ten) each, at a 6% redemption
premium on the face value, aggregating to %26,50,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Six
Lakh Fifty Thousand only). The redemption was approved by the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on 1% July 2024.

Ill. A-One Steels India Limited (formerly known as A-One Steel and Alloys Private

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25
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Accordingly, Vanya Steels Private Limited has become deemed public company
being a subsidiary of A-One Steels India Limited (formerly known as A-One Steel

and Alloys Private Limited).

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS: 12205; CP No.18667

Peer Review Cert.No.:2739/2022
UDIN No: F012205G000912159

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01°* August 2025

Note: Para wise details of the Audit finding, if necessary, may be placed as annexure

to the report.

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25
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ANNEXURE

To,

VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Bengaluru
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
my audit.

(2) | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a reasonable basis for
my opinion.

(3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

(4) Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management is conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Venkata Subbarao Kalva™
Company Secretary in Practice
FCS: 12205; CP No.18667

Peer Review Cert.No.: 2739/2022
UDIN No: F012205G000912159

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01°* August 2025
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